Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (LIywodraethu)

CYNGOR
Sl.r Y Ff.llnt Swyddog Cyswillt:
Flintshire Maureen Potter 01352 702322

COUNTY COUNCIL

-y

At: Cyng David Evans (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Mike Allport, Mel Buckley, Chris Dolphin, Mared Eastwood,
lan Hodge, Ray Hughes, Richard Lloyd, Mike Peers, Vicky Perfect, Dan Rose a
Roy Wakelam

Dydd Mercher, 1 Mawrth 2023
Annwyl Gynghorydd,
RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD HYBRID

PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU'R AMGYLCHEDD A’R ECONOMI
DYDD MAWRTH, 7FED MAWRTH, 2023 10.00 AM

Yn gywir

mme®

Steven Goodrum
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Sylwch: Gellir mynychu’r cyfarfod hwn naill ai wyneb yn wyneb yn Siambr y Cyngor,
Cyngor Sir y Fflint, Yr Wyddgrug, Sir y Fflint neu ar-lein.

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor. Bydd y ffrydio byw yn dod
i ben pan fydd unrhyw eitemau cyfrinachol yn cael eu hystyried. Bydd recordiad o’r
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar 6l y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’'r Tim Gwasanaethau
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.



https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

RHAGLEN

YMDDIHEURIADAU
| dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO)

| dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau yn unol a
Hynny.

COFNODION (Tudalennau 5 - 34)

| gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 10 lonawr, 1 Chwefror a
7 Chwefror 2023.

RHAGLEN GWAITH 'R DYFODOL AC OLRHAIN CAMAU GWEITHREDU
(Tudalennau 35 - 44)

Adroddiad Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu yr Amgylchedd a Gofal
Cymdeithasol -

Ystyried Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu'r
Amgylchedd a’r Economi a rhoi gwybod i'r Pwyllgor am y cynnydd yn erbyn
camau gweithredu o gyfarfodydd blaenorol.

CYFLWYNIAD GAN REOLWR Y RHAGLEN TIR AC EIDDO AR GYFER
UCHELGAIS GOGLEDD CYMRU

Cael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am sefyllfa bresennol prosiectau’r Rhaglen Tir
ac Eiddo a’r broses o ganfod prosiectau amgen.

SAFONAU’'R GWASANAETHAU STRYD (Tudalennau 45 - 54)

Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Stryd a Chludiant) - Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor a’r
Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau Stryd a’r strategaeth cludiant rhanbarthol

Nid yw Safonau’r Gwasanaethau Stryd wedi cael eu hadolygu ers 2019. Mae’r
adroddiad hwn yn adolygu’r safonau presennol ac yn argymell diwygiadau i
sicrhau bod y gwasanaeth yn parhau i gyflawni anghenion a disgwyliadau’r
cyhoedd.



7  POLISI TORRI GLASWELLT (Tudalennau 55 - 144)

Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Stryd a Chludiant) - Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor a’r
Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau Stryd a’r strategaeth cludiant rhanbarthol

Cynghori Craffu am y Polisi Torri Glaswellt diwygiedig

8 STRATEGAETH TOILEDAU LLEOL (Tudalennau 145 - 152)

Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Stryd a Chludiant) - Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor a’r
Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau Stryd a’r strategaeth cludiant rhanbarthol

Cynghori Craffu bod y pwynt adolygu statudol ffurfiol nesaf ar gyfer ein
Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol angen dilyn yr etholiadau llywodraeth leol a
gynhaliwyd ym mis Mai 2022, a bod gennym flwyddyn o ddyddiad yr
etholiadau i adolygu, diwygio, ymgynghori arno a chyhoeddi strategaethau
diwygiedig ar gyfer ein hardal leol. Mae’r adroddiad hwn yn nodi’r dull a
gymerir ac amserlenni’r adolygiad. Bydd y Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol
diwygiedig yn cael ei gyflwyno ym mis Mawrth 2023.

9 GWASANAETHAU PROFEDIGAETH (Tudalennau 153 - 160)

Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Stryd a Chludiant) - Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor a’r
Aelod Cabinet Gwasanaethau Stryd a’r strategaeth cludiant rhanbarthol

Hysbysu'r pwyllgor am y gwasanaethau a ddarperir a'r heriau a wynebir.

Sylwch, efallai y bydd egwyl o 10 munud os yw’r cyfarfod yn para’n hirach na
dwy awr.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



41.

42.

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3

ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
10 JANUARY 2023

Minutes of the hybrid meeting of the Environment and Economy Overview &
Scrutiny Committee of Flintshire County Council held on Tuesday, 10 January
2023

PRESENT: Councillor David Evans (Chair)

Councillors: Mike Allport, Mel Buckley, Chris Dolphin, Mared Eastwood,
lan Hodge, Ray Hughes, Richard Lloyd, Mike Peers, Vicky Perfect,
Dan Rose, and Roy Wakelam

IN ATTENDANCE AS OBSERVERS: Councillors Helen Brown, Debbie Owen

and Bernie Attridge

CONTRIBUTORS:

Councillor Chris Bithell (Cabinet Member for Planning, Public Health and Public
Protection),

Councillor Dave Hughes (Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Streetscene and the Regional Transport Strategy),

Councillor David Healey (Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Economy),
Councillor Paul Johnson (Cabinet Member for Cabinet Member for Finance,
Inclusion, Resilient Communities including Social Value and Procurement), Chief
Officer (Planning, Environment & Economy), Chief Officer (Streetscene &
Transportation),

Contract Manager, Waste Operations Manager, Waste Supervisors, Enforcement
Supervisor, Enforcement Manager

IN ATTENDANCE: Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and Democratic Services

Officers

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meetings held on 13 December 2022 were submitted.

Matters arising

Councillor Mike Peers referred to paragraph 37 on page 4 of the minutes
where the Facilitator gave an update on progress for the joint meeting with the
Education Youth & Culture O&S Committee. He said it did not state the purpose
which was to address vehicle parking outside schools.

Councillor Peers then referred to page 5 the MTFS and Budget Setting
2023/23 which was in Part 2 and asked Members would have sight of the
questions prior to it being discussed at Full Council.

Tudalen 5



43.

In response the Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator confirmed that the Finance
Officers took notes of the questions raised at the meetings which had been
collated. As these were in Part 2 and could not be published within the minutes,
she agreed to speak to the relevant Officers to enquire if a copy could be made
available to him.

The minutes were approved as moved and seconded by Councillor Dan
Rose and Councillor Mike Allport.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKING

The Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator presented the Forward Work
Programme and Action Tracking report. She drew attention to the items included
for the February meeting which were the Woodlands Strategy, Climate Change
update, Welsh Water Draft Water Resources Management Plan 2024 (Public
Consultation), and Wepre Park Management Plan. She then referred to the
Communities for Work item which had been withdrawn and she invited the Chief
Officer to provide information on this.

The Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy) said this item had
been included in the Forward Work Programme because of concerns around
Welsh Government (WG) funding. He was pleased to announce that funding was
secured for next year which was why it was being removed. He said that a report
would be provided within the next year outlining the work undertaken by
Communities for Work employability programme.

The Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator confirmed that the Education Youth &
Culture O&S Committee had a meeting arranged for the 2 February which would
include a joint item on Parking Outside School and Enforcement. Members of this
committee would be invited to that meeting for the item. She then explained that
Bereavement in the Countryside Policy was now scheduled for the February
meeting.

The Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator then referred to a workshop being
held on the 24 January on “Open Space Management, Grass Cutting and
Nature”. There was also the Exceptions Criteria for 20 mph implementation in
February and the Progress on the implementation of the conversation of the FCC
Fleet to electric and alternative fuels in October.

The Facilitator then referred to the Action Tracking report and invited the
Chief Officer (Streetscene) to provide an update on the network review by
Transport for Wales. The Chief Officer (Streetscene) explained that Welsh
Government (WG) were reviewing bus legislation in Wales which had been
presented to committee and said the network review was part of this. It was still
unclear when this would be implemented and that this would stay on the Action
Tracking until the review took place. It was suggested to remove this for now
until more information was available and this was agreed by committee.

Tudalen 6



44,

The Facilitator then referred to Town Centre Markets and reported that
Niall Waller would be sending a briefing paper to committee members later that
day. Referring to Litter from food outlets the Chief Officer (Streetscene) clarified
that this was a WG directive and suggested that a letter be sent from this
committee highlighting the issues being experienced. The Chair and committee
members agreed for the Chief Officer to write to WG for an update.

The Facilitator then referred to the workshop on the 20mph
implementation would now take place in March.

RESOLVED:
(@) That the Forward Work Programme be approved;

(b) That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, be
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as the
need arises; and

(c) That the Committee notes the progress made in completing the outstanding
actions.

WASTE STRATEGY

The Chief Officer (Streetscene) presented the report and thanked the
officers for the significant amount of work they had undertaken. Three reviews of
the Waste Strategy had taken place within the last 5 years with the current fourth
review focusing on the Council’s drop in performance levels and achieving those
targets to avoid financial penalties. Welsh Government (WG) set the statutory
targets for local authorities and the Council followed the blueprint with one of the
targets being 64% for this year and 70% by 2024/25. The aim was to send 70%
of all the waste generated to reuse recycle or compost with the remaining
residual waste 30% sent to an energy from waste plant.

The Chief Officer (Streetscene) provided information on the performance
levels over the last few years, the impacts following the pandemic and the options
available to meet the statutory targets. She then referred members to specific
sections of the report and outlined the legislative background and targets set by
WG and performance levels achieved by the Council. Information on the
infraction fines was given, which were highlighted as a significant risk to the
Authority. In 2021-2022 the recycling target has been missed by 3,314 tonnes,
which could equate to a potential infraction fine of £662,888 if WG choose to levy
a financial penalty.

An overview of the meeting held last year with the Minister was provided
by the Chief Officer (Streetscene) which followed a drop in performance the
previous year in 2020-2021 of just 17 tonnes and the Chief Officer (Streetscene)
indicated that it was likely they would be summoned again this year to explain
why the authority had missed its targets in 2021-2022. This was a significant
risk to the service as there was no budget to cover that level of fine and it could
impact on how services would be delivered in the future. She then referred
members to page 19 which included a forecast on performance for this year ,
which showed that if the authority continued at this level of performance, it would
equate to 63.17%, falling short of the target by 622 tonnes with a potential

Tudalen 7



infraction fine in excess of £124,000. An overview of the tonnages achieved over
the summer and winter was provided which was not recovering with residual
waste increasing. Recycling rates had increased, but so had residual waste,
which did not help with achieving targets. Information on the Sustainable Waste
Management Grant was provided by the Chief Officer (Streetscene), who advised
that WG were considering whether to potentially bring this into a circular
economy grant which would present additional financial risks for the Authority.
Members were referred to the table on tonnage rates on page 20 and Appendix 2
which included the slides from the Member workshops and a comparison of
Flintshire’s performance against other authorities with those local authorities at
the top and achieving the targets limiting the amount of black sack waste
households could dispose of. In Flintshire households were provided with a 180-
litre bin allowing for 90 litres per week with those top performing authorities
limiting it to 60 litres per week. Referring to the compositional analysis she
confirmed that 50% of the waste included in the black bin was recyclable, of
which 27% had found to be food waste.

A summary of the feedback received from the two Member Workshops
held in November was provided at 1.11 and the Chief Officer (Streetscene)
confirmed that the failure to achieve the statutory recycling targets was now
registered as a red risk for the portfolio. The Chief Officer (Streetscene) then
referred to the considerations and options on page 22 and provided detailed
information on frequency of collections, modelling of rounds and the costs
involved. Information on enhanced enforcement and increased charges for
garden waste subscriptions was given together with enhanced education to
ensure that more residents recycle.

In response to several questions raised by Councillor Mike Peers the Chief
Officer (Streetscene) provided the following responses.

Regarding infraction fines she confirmed that prior to the pandemic other
local authorities had been fined. She explained that each time the targets were
missed representatives from the Council were summoned to meet the Minister to
provide an explanation of why these targets were not met and what was being
put in place to mitigate it.

Referring to the blueprint policy point she confirmed that it did include
recommendations to reduce residual waste capacity, to use 140 litre capacity
bins, reduce collection frequency and provided advice on no side waste collection
for residual waste.

Moving on to side waste enforcement the Chief Officer (Streetscene) did
not have that information to hand but agreed to circulate it to Members following
the meeting. She confirmed that fixed penalty notices (FPNs) had been issued
and officers had targeted areas to provide that education and guidance to
residents. Temporary improvements were usually seen but then the households
slipped back into old habits. She outlined the three-stage side waste
enforcement process which had reduced the need for FPNs.

The Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Streetscene

and the Regional Transport Strategy reported that the last time the authority was
summoned to meet the Minister the target was missed by 17 tonnes with this

Tudalen 8



year’s likely to be missed by 600+ tonnes. He said some of the options available
were unaffordable but education was the way forward, targeting wards who put
recyclable waste in their bins. It was hoped to do this right across Flintshire.

The Chief Officer (Streetscene) emphasised that this would not be enough
to achieve the 70% target by 2024 on its own which would not be achievable with
what was being collected now and more needed to be done to restrict the amount
of residual waste collected. .

Councillor Mike Peers referred to the options at 1.14 he asked if any of
these guaranteed that the authority would hit the recycling target. In response
the Chief Officer (Streetscene) said the top performers were achieving this by
limiting the amount of residual waste collected per household to 60 litres a week.

The Chair said that changing the bin size or frequency was not the sole
answer but education was required.

Councillor Mared Eastwood commented that 60 litres per week appeared
to be realistic for residents and asked what capacity of bin would be required for
three or four weekly bins. She also asked what the life expectancy of the bins
was and whether it was possible to run two sized bins at the same time. In
response the Waste Operations Manager confirmed the bins life cycle was about
15 years and that they had been in use for 10 years now with very little damage.
The Chief Officer (Streetscene) confirmed that the authority already offered larger
240 litre bins for larger families of six or more so that would not be an issue. She
also mentioned that, although not included within the report, there had been
suggestions in the past to undertake a pilot targeting a particular area to
understand the bin capacity and frequency of collections, and this is something
that could be considered again.

Councillor Dan Rose advised that he would be interested in the possibility
of running a pilot to gather further information and suggested that a three weekly
pilot would impact the public less than four-weekly collections.

The Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Economy felt the reason
why the service was in this position was because the risks of infraction fines had
not been put in the public domain to enable a better understanding. He felt
additional resources should be used to ensure strategies on changing people’s
behaviour were successful. He felt it was unfair for the Chief Officer and Officers
to be summoned to meet the Minister when it was the county’s constituents who
were failing to recycle, especially putting food waste in the bin. He felt that when
the Council Tax bills were sent to residents another leaflet was included
highlighting in clear terms the situation the council was faced with a note “please
do not put this in your black bin”

In response to several questions from Councillor Dan Rose the Chief
Officer (Streetscene) provided the following:-

Regarding the point on black bins she confirmed that they were recyclable
and were broken down into pellets to make other products.

Tudalen 9



Replying to the second point on engagement and support provided by
Welsh Government (WG) she said a performance efficiency review commenced
in April 2021 with comparison data on what other local authorities had achieved
and what they were doing differently. The clear message from this review was
that those local authorities were limiting the amount of residual waste collected at
the kerbside. There were also monthly meetings with WG Officials to explore
what the Council could do differently and it was recommended that a waste
strategy review was undertaken, hence the purpose of this review.

As regards the enforcement question the Chief Officer (Streetscene)
reported on the Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) pilot undertaken with food
waste recycling in Denbighshire and said that something similar could be looked
at in Flintshire.

Answering the density and volume question the Chief Officer (Streetscene)
said last year the recycling had increased by 26% and residual waste had
increased i by more than 9%. She confirmed that in 2020/21 the recycling figures
were 51,000 tonnes. Residents were recycling more but unfortunately residual
waste rates were also continuing to rise .

Responding to point of vermin and rodents getting into black sacks, the
Chief Officer (Streetscene) said that, providing that people were taking advantage
of the weekly recycling and food waste collections there should not be any waste
left in the black bins to attract them. This only occurred if perishable or food
waste was put in the black bin.

Referring to larger families it was confirmed that larger bins were already
provided for families of 6 or more.

The Cabinet Member for Finance, Inclusion, Resilient Communities
including Social Value and Procurement felt councillors were part of the solution
by providing that help and advice to residents on a local level.

In response to questions raised by Councillor Bernie Attridge the Chief
Officer (Streetscene) firstly said that since the Authority had dropped from third
from the top to third from the bottom in Wales for performance and that nothing
had changed in terms of the collections, education or enforcement. In fact more
was being undertaken now that previously. She confirmed that there was no limit
to the number of bags residents could put out for recycling which was why the
bags were introduced. Residents were encouraged to put multiple bags out
which should be collected and she asked Councillor Attridge to let the team know
which streets were having issues. She also confirmed that the waste collected
from the AHP and nappy collection service did not go to landfill and it went to the
energy from waste plant.

The Waste Operations Manager confirmed that sometimes the authority
did use kerbside sorting collection vehicles to collect recycling especially over
Christmas and busy periods when the refuse collection vehicles were used to
collect recycling, such as cardboard. He asked Councillor Attridge to let him
have information on the missed black sack collections and he would investigate it
further. These incidents were quite rare and he reported on the very low number
of complaints received over the Christmas period. He reiterated that if any

Tudalen 10



Councillor had any issues in their wards, they should email his team to
investigate further.

The Cabinet Member for Planning, Public Health and Public Protection
commented the situation was very worrying as the Council could not afford to pay
the infraction fines when so many efficiencies were already being made to enable
a balanced budget. Solutions had to be found and he felt positive that it could be
achieved as the authority had done it before when it was third from the top in
Wales. It may not be unpalatable to go to a three or four weekly collections as
other authorities had done or spend £1m on buying new bins as our existing ones
will last some years yet. Over the last few years Covid had changed the way
that people lived their lives, but residents had co-operated in the past he was
confident they could be brought on board to meet out recycling targets. He felt
education together with urgent publicity campaigns informing residents of what
the Council and they were facing, as this could impact Council Tax rates. A stern
approach was required for those residents who refused to come on board to help
meet these targets.

In response to a question from Councillor Dan Rose the Chief Officer
(Streetscene) confirmed that the authority would continue to provide the assisted
collection service which was not affected by this review and was free of charge.

Councillor Debbie Owen referred to HMO properties and wondered if
landlords when the received their licences could pay for community bins which
were collected weekly. The Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy)
agreed to speak to Councillor Owen outside of the meeting.

The first recommendations in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors Richard Lloyd and lan Hodge

With regard to the second recommendation Councillor Dan Rose
suggested we wait until after the Pilot first and then look at the data before
looking at options. This was second by Councillor Roy Wakelam.

Councillor Mike Peers said that from the discussion he was pleased that
one of the Cabinet Members said that the reduction of the effective weekly bin
capacity was not supported and that education appeared to be the way forward.
Another Cabinet Member said he was not keen to go to three or four weekly
collections and he asked that these be noted.

The third recommendation was moved by Councillor lan Hodge and
seconded by Councillor Mike Allport.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee noted the Council’s current recycling performance
against statutory targets.

(b)  That the Committee noted the options for alternative waste collection
delivery models and recommended to cabinet that a pilot scheme be
undertaken to inform decision making in order to achieve the statutory
recycling targets set by Welsh Government.

Tudalen 11



That the Committee considered the proposal for increasing the garden
waste subscription fee to recover increasing operational costs

45. NORTH WALES GROWTH DEAL - QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE

The Chief Officer (Planning Environment and Economy) presented the
mid-year performance report from the Economic Ambition Board and he
reminded members of the introductory session held in early autumn last year.
The Economic Ambition Board had £240m worth of capital (£120m from Welsh
Government (WG) and £120m from UK Government) to spend across five
programmes, which were Digital, Low Carbon Energy, Land and Property, Agri-
Food and Tourism and High Value Manufacturing. The five programmes were
rated as amber in terms of progress and he provided detailed information on the
Bodelwyddan project which had been withdrawn with £10m going back into the
Ambition Board funds. He provided an update on the Road Review, which was
now awaited in 2023, the Western Gateway and the Warren Hall development.
He hoped the Programme Officer for Land and Property would be able to attend
the March meeting and bring the other Programme Officers to future meetings.

In response to questions from Councillor Mike Peers the Chief Officer
(Planning Environment & Economy) firstly referred to the private sector
investment question and confirmed that this was constantly being reviewed and
had been flagged as an Amber risk. The Programme Office accepted that more
engagement with the private sector was required.

In response to the question on whether any of the projects were at risk, he
said the answer was no, but that this was also being kept under review.

Referring to the Roads Review question in relation to the Warren Hall site
the Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy) did not understand why an
internal road on a Welsh Government site had been included in the scope of the
Roads Review.

Moving to the 440 jobs point, he was confident that the Warren Hall site
could deliver these jobs, especially with the release of the land for housing.

Finally referring to the high-end manufacturing point the Chief Officer
(Planning Environment & Economy) outlined how the optical technology was
identified together with the green technologies and described what technologies
were also being promoted.

Councillor Dave Healey said what the six Councils had achieved working
together within the North Wales Growth Deal and Ambition North Wales to secure
funding and identify such positive projects was remarkable. He reported on a
visit to the impressive Digital Signal Processing Centre at Bangor which was
funded by this initiative. He was pleased to see so many low carbon green
energy projects, especially within the agri-food and tourism sectors which was
good for rural communities.

The recommendations in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors Mike Peers and Richard Lloyd.

Tudalen 12



RESOLVED:

That the Committee considered and noted the Quarter 2 Performance.

46. COUNCIL PLAN 2022-23 MID-YEAR PERFORMANCE REPORTING

In presenting the report the Chief Officer (Planning Environment &
Economy) said this mid-year report covered the areas of the Council Plan which
related to this Committee.

He provided detailed information on the four areas of red risks

e Procurement — engagement with smaller companies to deliver energy
projects or energy efficiencies within properties and provided detail on the
Dynamic Processing System.

¢ Digital Connectivity in Rural Areas — he referred to the December meeting
where this was identified as a pressure as an officer post had not been
filled. It was hoped to fill the role before the new financial year.

¢ Social Value - this was something that should go to all areas of the council

The Chief Officer (Streetscene) reported on the red risk for Regional
Transport Plan. Further guidance was awaited from Welsh Government (WG) on
how local authorities were expected to deliver the Regional Transport Plan. Draft
Guidance was issued for local authorities to comment on before Christmas and
the authority’s comments had been returned to them. This remained a red risk as
there was no firm plan on how this was going to be delivered. The authority was
proposing to review the Integrated Transport Strategy for Flintshire to understand
how this fed into the Regional Transport Plan but this was unable to happen until
WG had outlined their expectations.

The recommendations in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors Richard Lloyd and lan Hodge.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the committee noted the levels of progress and confidence in the
achievement of priorities as at mid-year within the 2022/23 Council Plan.

(b)  That the committee endorsed and supported the overall performance
against 2022/23 Council Plan performance indicators as at mid-year.

(c)  That the committee was assured by explanations given for those areas of
underperformance.

47. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.42 am)

Tudalen 13



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



48.

49,

50.

ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
1 FEBRUARY 2023

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny
Committee of Flintshire County Council held as a remote attendance meeting on
Wednesday 1 February, 2023

PRESENT: Councillor David Evans (Chairman)
Councillors: Mike Allport,

APOLOGIES: Councillor Carol Ellis (one of the initiators of the call in)

SUBSTITUTIONS: Councillor Tina Claydon (for Councillor Richard Lloyd)

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Glyn Banks, Helen Brown, Richard Jones and David
Richardson (initiators of the call in)

Councillor Richard Lloyd attended as an observer

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Dave Hughes (Deputy Leader and Cabinet
Member for Streetscene and the Regional Transport Strategy); Chief Officer
(Streetscene and Transportation); Regulatory Services Manager; Streetscene
Service Manager and Waste Operations Manager

IN ATTENDANCE:
Democratic Services Manager and Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

CONSIDERATION OF A MATTER REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE
PURSUANT TO THE CALL IN ARRANGEMENTS

The Chairman advised that the Cabinet had considered a report on ‘Waste
Strategy Review’ at a meeting held on 17 January 2023. The decision (Record of
Decision 4056) had been called in by Councillors Bernie Attridge, Helen Brown,
David Richardson, Carol Ellis, Richard Jones and Glyn Banks. Copies of the
Cabinet report, Record of Decision and Endorsement of Call in, which identified
three reasons for the call in, were included in the agenda pack.

The Democratic Services Manager explained the procedure for the call in
of a Cabinet decision as detailed in the supporting document which was included
in the agenda.

The Chairman invited the signatories to present the reasons for the call-in
to the Committee.

WASTE STRATEGY REVIEW

Representations from call in signatories

Tudalen 15




Councillor Richard Jones outlined the reasons for the call in as detailed
within the Agenda. Whilst commenting on the reasons relating to the proposed
pilot, he outlined the comments made by Cabinet Members during consideration
of the Waste Strategy Review report, which had been around the need for better
education and the fact that residents had worked with the Council in the past in
ensuring high recycling rates and that this could happen again. The signatories
of the call in did not support the introduction of a pilot scheme without knowing
the costs, especially given the Chief Officer's comments that this could be tricky,
logistically challenging and would add additional cost and feel that education and
awareness for residents could work again.

Councillor Jones referred to data provided to Members during the Waste
Strategy Workshop held on 9 November, 2022 which showed that the Council
had the same collection frequencies as 2 other Council’s with the highest
recycling collection rates across Wales. He commented on the recycling
collection rates at Wrexham Council which currently stood at 68% and that they
had 240Ir bins and a 2 weekly collection frequency. He felt that this
demonstrated that achieving a better recycling rate had nothing to do with the
frequency of collections or the size of the black bin and everything to do with
education around recycling.

Councillor Glyn Banks recognised that at present the recycling collection
rates were disappoint but felt that the 70% target rate was not only achievable but
passable by implementation of the proposals put forward to the Scrutiny
Committee and Cabinet back in September 2021 and without the need to change
the frequency of collections. In outlining each of the proposals included within
the September 2021 report, he did not believe that they had been fully
implemented, especially around education and enhanced enforcement. He said
that the Council was following the WG Strategy to the letter but was not
implement it and did not feel that the WG could fine the Council for not hitting the
target, especially given the increase in home working as a result of the
Pandemic.

In relation to Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP), Councillor Banks
welcomed the collection of these products but raised concern that they were
being taken to Parc Adfer and not being recycled. He said that the weight of this
collection could have a positive increase on the recycling rates and cited
Gwynedd Council as an example of a Council who sent their produce to South
Wales for recycling. He felt that this was an area that the Council could improve
on. He also commented on the Household Recycling Centres and whilst praising
the staff at the centres, more work needed to be done to ensure all general waste
was being checked for recycling. He said that before any consideration was
given to moving to 3 or 4 weekly waste collection service, he wanted to see that
all of the proposals within the September 2021 report had been implemented and
a further report brought back to the Committee. If these proposals were
implemented and they had no effect on the recycling targets then he appreciated
that the frequency of collections may need to be considered further.

Councillor Helen Brown commented on the AHP and felt that if this was
recycled the Council could be reaching its recycling target. She said that many

Tudalen 16



residents were complaining about the length of time taken to receive caddies
which were not always available and that residents were also not aware that this
waste was not being recycled.

Councillor David Richardson asked why changing the frequency of
collections was being considered as part of the pilot when areas, such as,
education and enforcement could be improved. He said that since becoming a
Councillor he had not seen any enforcement within his ward and commented on
enforcement within the private sector which he said was proactive instead of
reactive. He felt that the Council should make recycling easier for residents,
commenting on the recycling bags which many residents complained about and
also the opening times of Household Recycling Centres which were not
accessible for residents working full time.

Councillor Bernie Attridge felt that there was a lack of consistency with
waste collections, commenting on cardboard and side waste being collected at
some properties and not at others. He commented on the partnership working
between the Council and Housing Associations and the lack of recycling being
carried out at Housing Association flats due to the lack of communal bins
provided. He suggested that the Council withhold the Social Housing Grant to
Housing Associations until they provided adequate bins for recycling as he felt
that this was assist with the Council’s recycling target. He said that he had been
proud during his time as Deputy Leader that the Council was one of the top
performing Council’s across Wales in terms of recycling targets and said he was
confident that the Council could meet the targets again without changing the
frequency of collections which he felt penalized residents.

Responses from the decision makers

The Chief Officer (Streetscene & Transportation) gave a detailed
presentation in response to the concerns and comments made by the signatories
of the call-in, which covered the following areas:-

e Reasons provided for call-in
e Response to the Call-In

e Education

e Enforcement

[ ]

Other local authority performance

The Regulatory Services Manager responded to the comments around the
volume of AHP collected and reported that the volume was 470 tonnes per
annum which was not a significant enough volume to meet the 64% recycling
target rate let alone the future target of 70%. She said that whilst the service had
been embraced by members of the public and that they continued to work with
WG to look for long term sustainable recycling solutions, this waste alone would
not be sufficient to reach the recycling targets. She advised that the recycling
waste being placed in black bins should be targeted and reported that 27% of
food waste was being placed in black bins. This amounted to 6,620 tonnes of
food waste last year where only 4,470 tonnes of food waste was collected
through the weekly collection service provided to residents. Ensuring this type of
waste was placed out for recycling would have a significant impact on recycling
collection rates.

Tudalen 17



The Regulatory Services Manager also reported that, following a
commitment to increase the number of Enforcement Officers, 3 additional
Officers had been appointed to assist with tackling additional fly tipping issues.

The Chief Officer commented on the suggestion to send AHP waste to
South Wales as was being carried out by Gwynedd Council and advised that
early cost benefit analysis carried out suggested that it was not economical for
the Council to send this waste to South Wales. She reported that the waste sent
to Parc Adfer did count towards the recycling collection figures. All options on
how this waste was disposed would continue to be explored.

The Chief Officer also reported that providing that cardboard was flat
packed and not contaminated this would be collected for recycling by the
operatives.

The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to ask questions of the
decision makers.

Councillor Mike Peers said that it seemed Cabinet voted to support the
proposal to pilot a reduction in the frequency of collections without considering a
detailed report on the pilot scheme. He said that during consideration of the
report at the Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 10 January Members were
advised that reducing the weekly capacity in the black bin would force residents
to recycle. He said that he had not agreed with this statement at the time and did
not agree with it now having done further research and cited the recycling
collection rates at Wrexham Council as an example of why he felt this statement
was flawed. He commented on the enforcement of side waste and that 6 fixed
penalty notices had been issued since September 2021, which he felt gave the
impression that side waste wasn’t a significant issue.

In referring to the Waste Strategy Review report to Scrutiny and Cabinet in
January, Councillor Peers commented on the blueprint, as outlined within the
report, which stated that if adopted, would result in high rates of high quality
recycling and questioned whether the blueprint was not working or not being
followed, as the high rates and high quality recycling was not being met. On a
composite analysis, he felt that the problem lied with household not recycling
properly and not about reducing bin capacity and changing the frequency of
collections was not the answer. He said that if residents currently put food waste
in an 180Ir black bin with 2 weekly collections, they will still do the same with a 3
weekly collection.

The Chief Officer said that Councillor Peers was correct that Cabinet
would not have supported a pilot without detail and that Cabinet had
recommended that a further report be brought back to a future meeting to outline
specific details of the proposed pilot prior to a decision being made on whether to
proceed. She said that she could not comment on the collection rates at
Wrexham Council as they did not operate their service in-house but she said that
she could approach them to ascertain what they did differently as they were the
only Council bucking the trend of all Local Authorities across Wales. From the
data collected all 4 best performing Councils had reduced the size of the black
bin to 60Ir with 1 Council increasing their recycling rates by 11%.

Tudalen 18



The Chief Officer also agreed with the comments made by Councillor
Peers that the reason the Council were not meeting their recycling target was
because some members of the public were not recycling properly and that
residual waste had increased by 9% and therefore it was necessary for the
Council to look at restrictions to encourage recycling.

The Regulatory Services Manager responded to comments that members
of the public who recycled regularly could feel punished unnecessarily through
the changes to waste collection frequency. She did not feel that this was a valid
argument as they would not need the capacity within their black bin. She said
that all members of the public should be encouraged to use the comprehensive
recycling service, provided weekly, to its full capacity.

Councillor Richard Jones commented on food waste being the densest
waste and the concern around the weight of the waste if residents continued to
place this waste in their black bin. He commented on the recommendation made
by the Scrutiny Committee in January around the pilot but said Members were
not aware that there would be a change to the frequency of collections without
further information being presented.

Councillor Glyn Banks commented on the number of residents using the
AHP service which he said worked out less than 0.1kg per person per week. He
said that even allowing for that weight of 470 tonnes, this was still a £61,000 gate
fee at Parc Adfer and felt that looking at sending this waste to South Wales in
conjunction with Gwynedd Council should be considered.

Councillor David Richardson asked whether officers enforced side waste
only or whether they also checked waste within the black bins. He said that
some families had 6 members in one household and others lived on their own
and that those that lived on their own may continue to put all waste in the black
bin even with smaller bins.

Councillor Roy Wakleman said that when he seconded the proposal for a
pilot at the Scrutiny Committee meeting in January, the discussion had been
around educating residents and he questioned how the change in frequency of
collections to 3 weekly had been included in the pilot when considered by
Cabinet. The Chairman said that his recollection from the Committee meeting
was that there wasn’t a one size fits all solution but it was also suggested that a
pilot be considered.

Councillor Chris Dolphin supported the comments of officers around food
waste and said that there needed to be more education and enforcement. He
spoke of his personal experience of being able to recycle fully with 4 adults and 2
babies in one household and the need for education which could be carried out
through leaflets to residents outlining the fines which could be imposed on the
Council if recycling targets were not met. He spoke in favour of Option 3 as a
recommendation from the Committee, that the decision should be reconsidered
by Cabinet as he was not in favour of a pilot and felt that the Council should get
on with introducing a 3 weekly collection as those residents who currently recycle
would not be affected.

Tudalen 19



Councillor lan Hodge spoke on the need for education, citing a recent
situation where he had visited schools and was disappointed with the lack of
education at schools and at home, when questioning children on their knowledge
of recycling.

The Chairman said that education would be a great thing but the 70%
recycling target was coming around quicker than all of the education could be
carried out.

Councillor Mared Eastwood asked where reducing the black bins to 60Ir
sat within the blueprint that WG expected the Council to deliver on. The Chief
Officer advised that the size of the bins did not sit within the blueprint as WG did
not specify litres per week. The Council had collected a great deal of data and
evidence that those Councils who had moved to reducing the black bins to 60Ir
had higher recycling rates. WG were reviewing the blueprint but additional
responsibilities, such as the AHP waste collection, had been placed on Local
Authorities as part of the current blueprint.

Councillor Dan Rose said that when proposing the pilot at the Scrutiny
Committee meeting in January, the Committee were discussing education and
that the methodology used for the pilot was an important detail for Members to
know. He said that the Council needed to look at all options available in order to
give Officers confidence when meeting with WG Ministers to demonstrate what
actions were being considered/taken. He felt that the purpose of the pilot should
be to dig deeper in understanding why residents were not recycling and that the
area chosen would be important given the 47% of recycling waste currently being
put in the back bin. He asked if the 47% of recycling waste was based on weight
or volume.

The Regulatory Services Manager advised that the data was based on
weight. The Chief Officer also added that during consideration of the Waste
Strategy at the Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet meetings, it was not specified
what the frequency of collections would be during the pilot. The intention of
presenting a further report to Cabinet on the pilot would be to consider various
options around frequency and size of bin.

The Cabinet Member for Streetscene and the Regional Transport Strategy
outlined the financial implications to the Council in not meeting the recycling
targets which equated to 0.7% of Council Tax. He said that no decision had been
made to pilot a 3 weekly waste collection service but said that a pilot, once
agreed by Cabinet, would provide data and evidence on the impact any changes
would have.

The Chairman invited the initiators of the call in to sum up.

Councillor Richard Jones, in summing up, said that it was unfair for officers
to say that other options, alongside changing the frequency of collections was
being considered by Cabinet, as during the Cabinet meeting, piloting a 3 weekly
collection was all that was discussed. During the Cabinet meeting, the Chief
Officer had offered to bring back a report on the pilot but this would include
information on the area selected and other data relating to 3 weekly collection
and not different types of pilot schemes. He did not feel that changing the

Tudalen 20



51.

frequency of collections would have a positive effect as this could antagonise and
disenfranchise residents to do the right thing. He also felt that the signatories of
the call in had provided enough evidence that there was doubt with the Cabinet
decision around the pilot and that there was a need to change residents
behaviour which would be a better course of action to increase recycling rates.

Councillor Glyn Banks asked the Committee to consider Option 3 or 4 as a
recommendation and said that if Cabinet were minded to go ahead with a pilot, all
options around frequency of collections and size of bins should be considered in
order to provide accurate data to the Council.

The Chief Officer, in summarising, said that regardless of what action the
Council took it was still facing a fine of £663,000 for not achieving the recycling
targets set by WG last year and were likely to be fined further within this financial
year. She advised that the Council was educating people and carrying out
enforcement but members of the public who refused to recycle were not changing
their behaviour and this posed a significant financial risk to the Council.

The Chairman invited the Democratic Service Manager to remind
Members of the options for decision-making as detailed in item 3 of the agenda.

Councillor Mared Eastwood asked if Members wanted to see detailed
proposals on how the pilot would work, which Option would this be for the
recommendation. The Chairman advised that this would be Option 3 to ask
Cabinet to look at the decision again.

Councillor Mike Peers proposed Option 3 and this was seconded by
Councillor lan Hodge. When put to the vote the proposal was carried.

Councillor Mike Peers asked that the nature of Members concerns be set
out in writing to Cabinet.

RESOLVED:

That having considered the decision, the Committee is still concerned about it
and refers this decision back to Cabinet to be reconsidered at the earliest
scheduled meeting.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.35 am)

Chairman

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



48.

49,

ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
7 FEBRUARY 2023

Minutes of the hybrid meeting of the Environment and Economy Overview &
Scrutiny Committee of Flintshire County Council held on Tuesday, 7 February
2023

PRESENT: Councillor David Evans (Chair)

Councillors: Mike Allport, Mel Buckley, Chris Dolphin, Mared Eastwood,
lan Hodge, Richard Lloyd, Mike Peers, Vicky Perfect, Dan Rose,
and Roy Wakelam

IN ATTENDANCE AS OBSERVERS: Councillor Paul Johnson (Cabinet Member
for Cabinet Member for Finance, Inclusion, Resilient Communities including
Social Value and Procurement),

CONTRIBUTORS:

Councillor Chris Bithell (Cabinet Member for Planning, Public Health and Public
Protection), Councillor David Healey (Cabinet Member for Climate Change and
Economy), Chief Officer (Planning, Environment & Economy),

Chief Officer (Streetscene & Transportation), Democratic Services Manager,
Programme Manager (Climate Change & Carbon Reduction)(for minute no 50)
Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment)(for minute nos.
51, 52 and 53)

Service Manager (Planning Strategy) (for minute no 54)

IN ATTENDANCE: Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and Democratic Services
Officers

APOLOGIES:

Clir Ray Hughes, ClIr Dave Hughes.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKING

The Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator presented the Forward Work
Programme and Action Tracking report. She confirmed that in addition to the
items included for the March meeting, David Matthews from the Ambition North
Wales would be attending to provide an update on the Land and Property
Programme. Referring to the joint meeting to discuss parking outside schools
with the Education Youth & Culture Overview & Scrutiny Committee she reported
that this had been re-scheduled for the 23 March 2023 at 2.00 pm The
Facilitator then provided an overview of the items scheduled for the forthcoming

Tudalen 23



50

meetings and asked members if they had items that they would like to put
forward for inclusion.

In response to a question from Councillor Mike Peers on whether
enforcement would be included, the Chief Officer (Streetscene) confirmed that it
would cover parking enforcement outside schools. As regards other
enforcement issues she confirmed that discussions had taken place with the
Chief Officer (Housing) and Cabinet Members and it was proposed that a joint
portfolio workshop be arranged which could also include fly tipping enforcement.
Councillor Mike Peers asked if parking enforcement in general could be included
in the workshop, which was agreed.

The Facilitator then referred to the Action Tracking report and provided an
update on the status of the items listed. Referred to the list of questions action
from Councillor Mike Peers she confirmed the Democratic Services Manager had
provided that information.

Councillor Mike Peers felt the action was still open as the link to the
Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee meeting in January did not
include a copy of the questions raised by members. The Democratic Services
Manager confirmed that he had contacted the Corporate Finance Manager and
would speak to him again. He would speak to Councillor Peers outside of the
meeting following guidance from the Chief Officer (Governance) on whether this
information could be shared.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Forward Work Programme be approved;

(b) That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, be
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as the
need arises; and

(c) That the Committee notes the progress made in completing the outstanding
actions.

CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY

The Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy) confirmed that the
report would be presented to Cabinet next week and that any comments received
from this committee would be welcome. This report had been presented to the
Audit and Governance Committee and Climate Change Committee.

The Programme Manager (Climate Change & Carbon Reduction)
commenced by saying the Climate Change Strategy was adopted in February
last year and that the Council’s 2021/22 Carbon Footprint data had been
submitted to Welsh Government (WG). She then highlighted specific areas
within the report which included the Council’s carbon footprint and emission
targets. Information was provided on the themes within the plan and an update
on targets achieved for buildings, mobility, transport and procurement.

Tudalen 54



Moving on to the Priorities for 2023/24 the Programme Manager (Climate
Change & Carbon Reduction) outlined the improvements in data collection
methodology, especially around procurement, and reported on the work being
undertaken with the commissioning officers and suppliers. An overview of the
information on the priorities for business mileage, recording of employee
vehicles, employee commuting and home working and tendering process when
working with suppliers was given. She then provided information on carbon
literacy training, the baselining of building and land stock and improvements to
electrification of fleet, together with a net zero carbon school and aim for net zero
carbon care home and local area energy plan.

The Programme Manager (Climate Change & Carbon Reduction)
confirmed that in addition to herself a Climate Change Project Assistant had been
appointed with a Climate Change Project Officer starting in two months. It was
also confirmed that there was a revenue pressure under the MTFS for an Energy
Projects Co-ordinator to lead on renewable energy, energy saving and EV
infrastructure support. She also reported on the collaborative work with
Denbighshire County Council for a Carbon Procurement Officer and access to
additional funding both from WG and the private sector.

Following questions from Councillor Mike Peers the Programme Manager
(Climate Change & Carbon Reduction) firstly referred to solar panels on schools.
She said the most optimised option was provided for the roof space of each
building with consideration made to identify what the pay back on investment
would be and renewable energy achieved to off-set the cost. She agreed to
speak to another team on the point of revenue generated and report back.

Referring to the point on decreases in heating costs from buildings or
streetlighting she confirmed that these had been achieved through upgrades
through the invest to save programme with these figures shown against the 2018
baseline information.

In regard to the opportunities to decarbonise buildings the Programme
Manager (Climate Change & Carbon Reduction) confirmed that this was included
as a priority to better understand what was able to be achieved within the existing
council stock.

In response to the Insulation of lofts and conservatories The Programme
Manager (Climate Change & Carbon Reduction) confirmed that these were
supported through the Domestic Energy Team and she agreed to refer this
question to them.

A question was raised by Councillor Dan Rose on measurements in
procurement to which the Programme Manager (Climate Change & Carbon
Reduction) confirmed that at present there was not a standardised measurement
in place. Welsh Government (WG) were developing a toolkit which would make it
easier for councils to include carbon weighting in tendering and for suppliers to
report on carbon emissions within contracts.

Responding to a question from Councillor Richard Lloyd on the use of

open fires in council properties, the Programme Manager (Climate Change &
Carbon Reduction) was not aware of any policies from Welsh Government but

Tudalen 25



51.

reported on several enquires received asking for the reinstatement of open fires
which would not be supported. The Chief Officer (Streetscene) confirmed that
Welsh Government had published a White Paper on a Clean Air Bill for Wales
which would probably follow what was taking place in England.

The Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Economy thanked the
Programme Manager for her work saying there were lots of positives within the
report but that procurement was a real problem. He felt that once the Welsh
Government (WG) toolkit was available it would be beneficial both for major
contractors and the Council. He said that it was unfair that this was linked to the
value of the goods supplied rather than the number of miles travelled and that
with inflation included it was a no-win situation for all authorities.

The recommendations within in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors Mared Eastwood and Roy Wakelam.

RESOLVED:

(a) To receive the report and note its contents

(b)

To support the improvement of internal communications to raise awareness
of the Council’s positive progress in moving to achieve its climate change
ambitions.

To support the introduction of embedding carbon measures into
procurement processes within a pilot portfolio of the Council.

To support the case for an Invest to Save post and resources to introduce
Building Management Systems within more of our building assets to
improve the management of energy use.

To support the embedding of climate change principles throughout the
Council, through delivery of Carbon Literacy training to Elected Members,

Senior Managers and other key decision makers

WOODLAND STRATEGY UPDATE

The Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy) introduced the
report and confirmed that the Urban Tree and Woodland Strategy was adopted in
2018 to assist with tree planting and increasing tree canopy cover. The Service
Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment) continued saying the
Urban Tree and Woodland Strategy was established to provide an increase in
canopy cover and ensure the sustainable management of trees, highlighting the
benefits that trees provided to residents within Flintshire. He outlined the targets
set for increasing canopy cover from 14.5% to 18% by 2033. Natural Resources
Wales carry out the canopy cover assessment, although this had not been
reviewed since 2018 so up to date information was not available at present.

The Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment)
reported that in recent years, tree planting had taken place on sites identified
within the county utilising funding from Welsh Government Woodland
Improvement Grant and the Local Nature for Places Grant. He outlined how the
canopy cover had been increased with well-planned tree schemes, ensuring the
aftercare was in place, with local communities involved to ensure the survival of
the trees. The Service Manger outlined the process involved to ensure these

Tudalen %6



planting projects were successful. Over 23,000 trees had been planted over the
last 4 years and the Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural
Environment) commended his team for their hard work to enable this to happen.
Engagement with communities was key to this and he provided story map of tree
planting projects across the county which highlighted the work undertaken.

The Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment) then
provided information on the proposed development of a Flintshire Forest. It was
suggested that a Flintshire forest could mirror the direction of National Forest
from Welsh Government (WG). He outlined the objectives for creating areas of
new woodland, spaces for leisure and nature, capturing and storing carbon as
well as providing timber. There would be a need to align the key objectives from
the Urban Tree and Woodland Strategy and the Flintshire Forest. He referred
members to the framework at 1.11 in the report and provided an overview of the
key elements, vision and engagement with the public.

In response to a question from Councillor Roy Wakelam on the protection
of existing older trees, the Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural
Environment) outlined the mechanisms such as Tree Preservation Orders (TPO)
and planning conditions. He referred to public consultations undertaken in
advance of planting projects and some resistance to tree planting which had
been received, he said public engagement to highlight the benefits of trees as
well as ensuring the right trees were planted was key to their ongoing protection.
The promotion of good tree planting with the correct trees planted in new
developments would ensure better outcomes. Referring to losses of tree he
confirmed that approximately 1,000 trees had been lost due to Ash dieback over
the winter on highways but more trees were being planting to replace these. This
work was critical.

In response to questions from Councillor Dan Rose the Service Manager
(Countryside Access and Natural Environment) firstly responded to the success
of the 23,000 trees planted point and said that there was roughly a 20% failure for
small whips with maximum care taken to ensure the survival of the larger
standard trees. During the drought last year with 5,000 trees planted at Wepre
Park it was not possible to ensure all trees survived. This year the whips which
were lost were being replaced.

Responding to the mulch from felled trees point the Service Manager
(Countryside Access and Natural Environment) confirmed this was already used
for keeping moisture in the grounds and preventing weeds on standard trees and
hedgerows. He also confirmed that work had been undertaken on carbon
sequestration on sites across the county to ensure tree planting did not disturb or
disrupt an established environment.

In response to the records point the Service Manager (Countryside Access
and Natural Environment) confirmed that records were kept of species and
orchards planted and provided information on the tree days and apple juice
sessions held using fruit from heritage variety fruit trees.

In response to the question on protection of new areas of planting the

Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy) said the areas under review
were on Flintshire land and as landowners would be protected. If development

Tudglen 27



52

occurs next to the council’s land assessments would be undertaken to ensure the
trees would not be affected.

The Chair referred to the Local Development Plan (LDP) and asked if
there was a way of insisting that Developers included more established trees in
their plans. The Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy) said this was
not for every site but that the Development Management Team should consider
this when assessing potential impacts on site.

Responding to questions from Councillor Mike Peers, the Service Manager
(Countryside Access and Natural Environment) firstly referred to the forest
question. He confirmed that public engagement was undertaken in areas being
considered for tree planning. All proposed trees planting to increase canopy
cover, will survey the ground conditions, settings and existing trees before
deciding what type of tree to plant. Trees with thorns or poisonous berries for
example, would not be considered in a school environment.

Responding to the green corridor question from the Cabinet Member for
Climate Change and Economy, the Service Manager (Countryside Access and
Natural Environment) explained that tree planting and woodlands would not be
planted in isolation. There were constraints regarding available land and its
connectivity to the wider environment but landowners were engaged in this
process.

Responding to a question from Councillor Dan Rose, the Service Manager
(Countryside Access and Natural Environment) outlined the collaborative work
undertaken over several years with the partners within the Public Services Board.
This had enabled the mapping of green assets within the county with several
successful smaller projects. The position with regard to landowners was different
in terms of funding but there were options.

The recommendations within in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors Mike Peers and lan Hodge.

RESOLVED:

(a) That Members note the content of this update and support the officers in
their ongoing tree and woodland management work.

(b) That Members support plans to develop the Flintshire Forest in accordance
with the framework details provided.

WEPRE PARK MANAGEMENT PLAN

In presenting the report the Service Manager (Countryside Access and
Natural Environment) explained that the Wepre Park Management Plan was their
core operational document to guide the work, actions and development over a 5-
year term. He provided information on the changes in format from the
2016/2021 plan and outlined how the new plan would be structured. The Service
Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment) then provided
information on the ongoing maintenance schedule and programme for the park
moving forward. Information was included at Appendix 3 on the extensive public

Tudalen %8



53.

consultation carried out last year and an overview of the rise in visitor numbers.
An outline was given of specific areas within the Management Plan for the park
which ensured the protection of sensitive areas of conservation but also
welcomed visitors. He then referred to Appendix 2 which included Actions for the
day-to-day business running of the park and he provided information on
resources and external funding, ranger and natural environment team and the
volunteers who support the park.

In response to questions on funding from Councillor Mike Peers the
Service Manager explained the core funding included the base budget was for
staff and to enable the day-to-day operations of the park with the support of the
volunteers. Some of the work highlighted in the actions in Appendix 2 could be
undertaken within that budget. As regards additional funding requirements for
projects he confirmed that these would be sourced from external funding streams
which were difficult to predict. It was essential to provide that confidence to
funders that they were buying into something which had been recognised, had
undertaken consultation and was included in the Plan for the park.

Following a request for an update on the hydropower experiment on
Wepre Brook from the Cabinet Member for Climate Change & Economy the
Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment) explained
Wepre Brook was dammed in the 1800s to provide electricity for Wepre Hall. He
referred to discussions held regarding a previous scheme which was shelved and
then reported on the approach from the University College of London (UCL) who
had developed some new equipment that they wanted to test. The temporary
equipment was installed last autumn and UCL were pleased that it had worked
well and had furthered their research. Once the figures about water flow and
turbine efficiency had been received this would enable costs to be established for
the new turbine to be installed and which would be in keeping with the park and
link up to the visitor centre and pay back for electricity generated. This was
expected within the next couple of weeks then a decision would be made to move
forward or not.

The recommendations in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors lan Hodge and Richard Lloyd

RESOLVED:

That Members endorse the new 5-year management plan for Wepre Park.

OPEN SPACES AND HIGHWAY MEMORIAL POLICY

In presenting the report the Chief Officer (Planning Environment &
Economy) explained that currently there was no policy in place for memorials
placed on the highway network or on council land. He felt this policy struck the
correct balance between the initial cost, long term maintenance and
consideration of location as this was a sensitive issue.

The Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment)
reported that within countryside sites and opens spaces requests had been

Tudalen 29



received from members of the public for a commemorative bench or tree to be
planted in memory of a loved one. Over the last few years these requests had
increased significantly and had led to concerns that open spaces were not turned
into memorial gardens. This was a sensitive issue and the council had to be
mindful of families and their circumstances.

The purpose of this policy was to work with families in a sensitive way and
consider all options when it came to memorials in addition to benches, such as
planting a tree or section of hedgerow, styles or donate a gate which were also
considered in country parks. Referring to highways memorials the Service
Manager (Countryside Access and Natural Environment) said these were slightly
different as safety had to be considered because of the distraction for drivers.
This policy would enable officers to speak to the families to ensure a positive
outcome was achieved. There were also funding issues which had to be
considered to include the initial purchase, maintenance and refurbishment of the
item which should be borne by the applicant. He then reported on the sensitivity
required when families met to release balloons which was an issue as they
release plastic and litter into the countryside. Discussions with families would
take place to find alternative ways for families too mark family members
passings.

In response questions on planting memorial trees and balloon releases
from Councillor Dan Rose the Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural
Environment) confirmed families could plant trees. There were risks which had to
be discussed with the family such as trees dying during drought conditions,
suffering vandalism and they had to be maintained. He was not in favour of
plaques but a commemorative book at visitor centres or online could be used to
record this. Referring to balloon releases he said it was difficult for his officers to
approach a grieving family to ask them not to release the balloons. Publicising
and providing information on the risks of doing this was the way forward

Councillor Dan Rose asked if bio-degradable plaques would be considered
as a short-term measure which the Service Manager (Countryside Access and
Natural Environment) confirmed that he would be agreeable to considering.

Councillor Dan Wakelam suggested families be encouraged to leave
unwrapped flowers tied with twine. In response the Service Manager
(Countryside Access and Natural Environment) said rotting composting flowers
still had to be removed. Maybe suggesting that fresh flowers were left
unwrapped but had to be removed within two weeks. Officers felt reluctant to
remove something that had been left in memory but this policy would allow
removal of rotten flowers.

Councillor Mike Peers sought clarification on the Legacy donation point on
page 109 at sections 1.10 and 1.13 and suggested that the following wording be
considered :- “you may give a donation to Flintshire County Council or
Countryside Services after your instructions had been discussed and agreed by
both parties”. The Service Manager (Countryside Access and Natural
Environment) was happy to include this additional wording

Tudalen %O



54.

The recommendations in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors Roy Wakelam and Councillor Mared Eastwood

RESOLVED:

That the committee approved the policy subject to the amendment suggested by
Councillor Mike Peers

DWR CYMRU WELSH WATER DRAFT WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
PLAN 2024 - PUBLIC CONSULTATION LAUNCH

In presenting this report the Chief Officer (Planning Environment &
Economy) confirmed that this was a live consultation and that the role of Welsh
Water was critical especially with regard the LDP and management of

phosphates.

The Service Manager (Strategy) firstly spoke on the previous item of
biodiversity saying that the Local Development Plan (LDP) included a sweep of
policies which would help with those issues to protect trees, woodlands or
hedgerows. There was also green space and urban space protections included

together with new policies on biodiversity net gains.

Moving on to the report the Service Manager (Strategy) reported that this
consultation from Welsh Water had been sent to key stakeholders and related to
an update of their Water Resource Management Plan which was a statutory
document which had to be refreshed on a 5 yearly basis. This was to ensure the
long-term security of water supply for business and domestic use. Welsh Water
had highlighted the drought experienced last year and had introduced drought
reliance within this plan. Members were referred to the map which highlighted
the 23 planning zones in the report and at point 1.03 included the key objectives
and drivers on how these measures would support those areas in deficit. The
overview of water supply by Welsh Water was given at 1.04 in the report to
ensure that when severe events happen that Welsh Water were able to cater for
supply as much as possible. The Service Manager (Strategy) explained that
Flintshire was in the Alwen Dee zone and then provided information on how
calculations were made. Four areas had been identified as areas that would be
in deficit with three in South Wales and one in North Wales. He outlined how the
demand management could affect the county and measures put in place to

reduce daily consumption. Increased water metering was also being promoted.

Tudglen 31



He referred to 1.10 of the report and the bullet points listed and explained
why further clarification was required:-

e He wanted clarification that the growth in Flintshire’s LDP had been
factored into this planning.

e That the Council fully supported the wider resilience measures to support
leakage improvement

e Supported raising customer awareness on efficient use of water.

¢ that reductions in waste water going to treatment works from each
domestic and commercial property could assist with less phosphates going
into rivers

e Encouraged greater connection between waste resource planning and
waste water planning to enable improvements to be brought forward

e Seek a commitment for more regular liaison and collaboration with Welsh

Water as a key partner whether on a strategic level or local level.

In response to questions from Councillor Mike Peers the Service Manager
(Strategy) firstly responded to the point on leakage reduction saying maybe if a
definitive programme was publicised it would help. Welsh Water had an aging
infrastructure they are working through but it was more a reactive process as it
was a costly exercise. Coordination with other statutory providers when
undertaking road works to enable opportunities for shared work could be

explored.

In response to the question on run off and surface water the Service
Manager (Strategy) explained developers had to consider more sustainable ways
of dealing with surface water run-off. Developers were still struggling with SUDS

and this was something which had to happen.

Councillor lan Hodge asked if all new developments were required to
automatically go on a water meter. In response the Service Manager (Strategy)
did not know as it was not a planning requirement but was a requirement for the
water bodies. Within the information provided from Welsh Water it appeared it
was not which could be part of the problem and should be more actively

encouraged especially allaying fears from larger families who do not want them.

The Cabinet Member for Planning, Public Health and Public Protection
referred to future developments of the LDP with more properties being built and

asked had Welsh Water taken this into consideration. The upgrading of the

Tudalen 1’:?2



sewerage treatment works which would be affected by the phosphate issues and
ways of dealing with phosphates had been included in the LDP

In response the Service Manager (Strategy) reported that Welsh Water
had been a key stakeholder involved throughout the LDP and were aware of the
growth, amount of houses and their understanding that the SUDS requirements
would be included as part of surface water management. Ensuring better
communication and dialogue with Welsh Water was the best way to ensure they
understood what the council was required to undertake and what their
requirements were too. The upgrading of the treatment works could not happen

quickly enough as it was the best way to deal with the phosphates problems.

In response to a question on the Milwr Tunnel from the Cabinet Member
for Climate Change and Economy, the Service Manager (Strategy) confirmed he
would take this back as a separate matter and write to Welsh Water and ask
specific questions as to the utilisation of the Milwr Tunnel for water abstraction

and hydro power.

The Chief Officer (Planning Environment & Economy) suggested an
invitation be sent for a representative of Welsh Water to attend committee for a

future meeting. This was agreed by committee members

The Service Manager (Strategy) said that dependent upon the date when
a representative could attend committee, he was happy to draft the letter with
regard to the Milwr Tunnel and that the consultation comments could go as per

the recommendations.

The recommendations in the report were moved and seconded by
Councillors lan Hodge and Mared Eastwood

RESOLVED:

(a) That Members note the content of this report and the main outcome of the
draft Water Resources Management Plan 2024, that shows no supply
resilience issues for the Alwen Dee zone that Flintshire is part of

(b) That Members support the content of paragraph 1.10 of this report and give

the Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy) delegated authority

Tudalen 33



to prepare a final response and agree this with the Chair of this committee,

prior to responding to the consultation by the due date.

55 MEMBERS OF THE PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 12.32 am)

Tudalen 1§4



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4

Sir y Fflint
"E!Ew!o%h.ire

ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting 7 March 2023

Report Subject Forward Work Programme and Action Tracking

Report Author Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members. By
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues. A copy of the Forward Work
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward
Work Programme for the Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

The report also shows actions arising from previous meetings of the Environment
& Economy Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the progress made in completing
them. Any outstanding actions will be continued to be reported to the Committee
as shown in Appendix 2.

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as
the need arises.

3 That the Committee notes the progress made in completing the
outstanding actions.

Tudalen 35



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION
TRACKING

1.01

Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council
or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02

In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
Is it an area of major change or risk?

Are there issues of concern in performance?

Is there new Government guidance of legislation?

Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?
Is the issue of public or Member concern?

OOk wWN =

1.03

In previous meetings, requests for information, reports or actions have
been made. These have been summarised as action points. Following a
meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee in
July 2018, it was recognised that there was a need to formalise such
reporting back to Overview & Scrutiny Committees, as ‘Matters Arising’
was not an item which can feature on an agenda.

1.04

It was suggested that the ‘Action tracking’ approach be trialled for the
Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee. Following a
successful trial, it was agreed to extend the approach to all Overview &
Scrutiny Committees.

1.05

The Action Tracking details including an update on progress is attached at
Appendix 2.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

None as a result of this report.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

In some cases, action owners have been contacted to provide an update
on their actions.

Tudalen 36




4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT
4.01 None as a result of this report.
5.00 | APPENDICES
5.01 | Appendix 1 — Draft Forward Work Programme
Appendix 2 — Action Tracking for the Environment & Economy OSC.
6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
6.01 | Minutes of previous meetings of the Committee as identified in Appendix 2.
Contact Officer:  Margaret Parry-Jones
Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator
Telephone: 01352 702427
E-mail: Margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of

the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 37



mailto:Margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
APPENDIX 1

"Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2022/23

Transportation Strategy

Streetscene &
Transportation

Date of Subject Purpose of Report/Presentation Scrutiny Focus | Responsible/Contact | Submission
Meeting Officer Deadline
Thursday : : o : : . : .
23rd March Parking outside Schools | To provide information on the traffic Information Chief Officer
Meeting of Education, regulation process and enforcement Sharing Streetscene &
2pm Youth & Culture OSC provision (referred by the Environment & Transportation & Chief
with members of Economy OSC) Officer (Education &
Environment & Youth)
Economy OSC to be
4 invited to the meeting
an .
Ei;gzpépm Highways Drainage To receive an update Assurance Chief Officer (Planning,
) Environment &
510.00 am Economy)
Eg Housing regeneration To consider the draft refreshed
grants & loans policy Housing Regeneration Grants Pre-decision Niall Waller
and Loans Policy and to recommend scrutiny
approval to Cabinet.
Ultra Low Emission To consider the Ultra Low Emission Assurance Chief Officer
Vehicle Transition Plan | Vehicle Transition Plan Streetscene &
Transportation
Integrated To consider the Strategy Assurance Chief Officer




ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

confirmed)

Wales.

APPENDIX 1
Date of Subject Purpose of Report/Presentation Scrutiny Focus | Responsible/Contact Submission
Meeting Officer Deadline
North Wales Energy To consider the adoption of the Regional | Pre-decision Chief Officer (Planning,
Strategy & Action Plan Energy Strategy & Action Plan and scrutiny Environment &
and Local Energy Plan | support for development of Local Area Economy)
Energy Plans
+{16 May 2023
;;'1 y Public Spaces To review the current PSPO’s prior to Policy Review Chief Officer (Planning,
8—10-00 am Protection Order consideration by Cabinet. Environment &
& (PSPQO’s) review Economy)
D
.cl; Town Centre Loans To provide an update Assurance Niall Waller
Communities 4 Work To provide an update on the closure of
the Communities for Work programme Assurance Niall Waller
across Wales following the end of the
European Structural Fund programmes.
13 June . . )
2023 Welsh Government To receive an update Assurance Chief Officer
Deposit Return scheme (Streetscene &
10.00 am Transportation)
Low carbon Energy To receive an update on the Low Carbon
Programme (to be Energy programme of Ambition North Assurance Facilitator




ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

APPENDIX 1
Date of Subject Purpose of Report/Presentation Scrutiny Focus | Responsible/Contact | Submission
Meeting Officer Deadline
11 July 2023 Council Plan 2022-23 To review the levels of progress in the Performance Chief Officers
Year-End Performance | achievement of activities and monitoring
10.00 am performance levels identified in the
Council Plan.

Iltems to be added: -

March 15 2023 - Exceptions criteria for 20 mph implementation — Portfolio workshops x 2 10.00 (in person) 5pm (Zoom)

T uarepny

October 2023 - Progress on the implementation of the conversion of the FCC fleet to electric and alternative fuels.




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Action tracking from Environment & Economy OSC March 2023

Item/Date Discussion Action By whom Status
Minutes
10/1/23 Clir Mike Peers requested | Facilitator to Margaret Response
a copy of the questions check with ] .
raised by Members during | relevant officers if Parry-Jones Zrov;de;j by
the Part 2 budget item the information ead o _
considered at the could be provided Dempcratlc
December meeting. to Members Services
Climate Alex Ellis agreed to speak
Change to another team member Alex Ellis to make | Alex Ellis Ongoing
Update regarding revenue further enquiries
7/2/23 generated from solar
panels on schools.
Climate Insultation of lofts and
change conservatories — what Alex Ellis to refer | Alex Ellis Ongoing
Update support is available? to Domestic
712123 Energy Team

Tudalen 43




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6

Sir'y Fflint
“'E!Emo%b.!re

ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 7th March, 2023
Report Subject Streetscene Standards Review 2022-23
Cabinet Member Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for

Streetscene and Regional Transport Strategy

Report Author Chief Officer, Streetscene and Transportation
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In 2012, multiple services were combined to create a new Streetscene and
Transportation (S&T) portfolio. At this time, Cabinet approved a set of Streetscene
Performance Standards which formed the basis of the new portfolio’s quarterly
performance report. This was then heavily scrutinised by both the Environment
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet at the time. These Streetscene
Standards were last reviewed in 2019 and have been subject to minimal change since
inception.

This report outlines our intention to review the existing standards and recommend
changes that link more closely to the council plan and portfolio business plan. We wish
to ensure that the service continues to meet the needs and expectations of the public
and residents we serve, whilst making the most efficient use of the available resources.

The impending review of financial settlements, the changing demands of our
environmental and climate change agenda and the need to provide clear and
measurable performance data, will all influence the way Streetscene and Transportation
(S&T) deliver services over the coming years. As a service that touches people’s lives
every day, it is vital we demonstrate real value to the people of Flintshire, but also
measure our performance in a way that is meaningful and enables continuous
improvement.

The purpose of this report is to illustrate the inadequacies of the existing document and
request support from Informal Cabinet for S&T to review and retire the existing
Standards. This would be in favour of a more robust and relevant suite of performance
metrics that can be measured, monitored and reported more effectively.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Scrutiny notes the proposal to retire the existing Streetscene Standards
document, and supports the intended review to replace them with a revised
suite of performance metrics that support service standards in order to measure
performance against existing statutory obligations, the Council Plan and
existing policies. A further report will be presented once the review has been

completed. Tudalen-45




REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE BACKGROUND FOR REVIEWING THE STREETSCENE
STANDARDS

1.01

Streetscene & Transportation service delivery teams are responsible for waste
and recycling collections, household recycling centres, street cleansing,
highways and grounds maintenance, grass cutting, winter maintenance, street
lighting and trunk road operations. These services are key to ensuring that
Flintshire remains safe, clean and accessible to all. To ensure that resources
are allocated and prioritised in the most effective manner, in 2012 a set of
‘Streetscene Standards’ were agreed and adopted.

1.02

These Standards have not changed significantly since 2012, despite significant
changes to the scope of the portfolio. Some of the Standards are no longer
relevant, and some areas of the new Streetscene and Transportation services
are not represented at all. In addition, many Standards are now covered by new
or existing policies, which now supersede the original 2012 document.

1.03

In 2019, the updated Council Plan included a new performance measure of
Streetscene Standards, under the Safe and Clean Council theme and, as a
result, the direct output of the portfolio was reported through the Scrutiny
process. This was updated to “A well-connected, safe and clean local
environment” in the Council Plan for 2022-2023.

1.04

Upon review, it has been found that many of the current Standards are covered
by either national guidance or existing policy, and in some instances contradict
or confuse our obligations and commitments. The Standards describe how
services are delivered and provided rather than providing a measure of the
portfolio’s performance.

As a result, the current Standards do not offer sufficient clarity to the service
provider or the service recipient, which often causes conflicting priorities for all
stakeholders. Service standards are important for customers, members and
employees, as well as the management of the service in that they help to define
what everyone can expect and they provide a reminder of the challenges and
obligations that they face. The Standards will be of little value if performance
cannot be measured against them.

1.05

Appendix 1 provides a list of the current Streetscene Standards for illustration
purposes; however, the table below gives examples of some redundant
sections of the document: -

Contact Centre Response Times No longer controlled by Streetscene
Pest Control No longer controlled by Streetscene
Smoke Nuisance — Domestic No longer controlled by Streetscene

1.06

Future Impacts on the Streetscene Standards

Even without the proposed revision, the existing ‘Standards’ may be subjected
to change in light of the following:

Tudalen 46




e Future years MTFS Proposals — Changes to services in light of the current
economic climate will need to be considered and some ‘Standards’ may no
longer be financially viable in the short to medium term.

e Waste Strategy Review - The ongoing review of waste strategy will have
considerable impact on the existing standards, particularly if collection
frequency or receptacle sizes are to be amended to achieve national
recycling targets and avoid fines from Welsh Government.

e Grass Cutting Policy Review - The pending review of the Flintshire Grass
Cutting Policy and the work being undertaken by the Biodiversity Team
could contradict or even undermine the current standards, rendering many
more of them outdated.

1.07 Desired Outcome
The purpose of this report is to advise members of the intended review of the
standards and allow the portfolio to produce a suite of operational indicators
and measures, which will demonstrate our performance against statutory
obligations and Council policies.
Each ‘Theme’ within the Council Plan is supported by specific policies and it is
our performance against these policies which should be measured. The metrics
need to demonstrate to the public that we are meeting our commitments, whilst
also driving operational improvements.
In addition, we must establish a priority matrix which allows teams to schedule
work according to impact and available resources, giving staff and customers a
clear understanding of how and when services will be delivered.
One option could be to mirror the Housing Repairs priorities to give consistency
across the authority. For example:
Emergency Urgent Standard
Up to 24 hours Up to 5 Days Up to 28 Days
1.08 | The Structure of Delivery

The intention is that the new metrics, or Key Performance Indicators (KPls), will
be operational tools to measure our effectiveness in delivering the services
expected by Flintshire policies or statutory obligations.

Council Theme

Green Society and
Environment

In Year Priority

Green
Environment

Open Space Grass Cutting H'ghW?VS
Enforcement . Inspection
. Policy .
Policy Policy
Streetscene Streetscene Streetscene
KPI's KPI's KPI's

The image above illustrates where the new metrics would sit in the hierarchy of

Flintshire’s service model. Tiidalam A7
I'Uuuailcli =1




1.09

Benefits of change

Replacing the 2012 Standards represents a proactive and future focused mind-
set, demonstrating our desire for continual improvement. It gives opportunity to
ensure that our Standard Operating Procedures are reviewed and stress tested
against the current financial and social climate. It will also instil confidence that
we are delivering on our statutory duties in the most efficient and effective way
and confirm that performance is being achieved and sustained consistently.

As part of the review, areas of the business that are not currently being
measured will be identified and the change will bring focus on work streams
that can be improved or streamlined.

Where we are able to identify strong performance, we will be able to promote
and enhance the reputation of Streetscene & Transportation and the authority
as a whole by sharing relevant data with members and the wider public.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

In order to measure and record performance, the portfolio will need to fully
review historic working practices and introduce new ways of working at all levels
of the business.

2.02

The new standards are intended to have a positive impact on resources within
the service allowing a more efficient distribution of work through clearly defined
priorities and structured working practices where performance is measured and
reported on internally and externally.

3.00

IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

3.01

By continuing with the existing ‘Standards’ we are effectively making
commitments we are not able to deliver. In addition, we risk reputational damage
by placing measures on business functions that are no longer controlled within
the portfolio.

3.02

The impact of failing to measure the business correctly can have an impact on
our ability to demonstrate true value for money and be able highlight efficiencies
over the medium to long term.

3.03

It is intended that a further report will be presented to Cabinet following
completion of the review and recommendations made as to how the new metrics
and Standards should be measured and reported.

4.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT

4.01

Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Streetscene and
Regional Transport Strategy

4.02

Trade Unions

4.03

Senior Management Team and Operational Managers

Tl n_ A0
Fudaten48



5.00

APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1 — Streetscene Standards 2019 pdf

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None

7.00 | CONTACT OFFICER DETAILS

7.01 | Contact Officer: Christopher Goddard — Service Manager Streetscene
Telephone: 07867 192311
E-mail: Christopher.Goddard@Flintshire.gov.uk

8.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

8.01 | None

Tudalen 49



mailto:Christopher.Goddard@flintshire.gov.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



REVISED STREETSCENE AND TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS 2019

Shaded Grey indicates measure no longer appropriate, Shaded Blue are new measures

Measure
Type Description Target
Abandoned Cars Time taken to inspect and respond to abandoned 2 working days
vehicles on the highway
Household Recycling Centres and Bring Sites Length of time taken to respond to requests about 24 hours

Recycling Parks (neighbourhood or household
recycling centres) or let the customer know what has
happened

Waste Missed Black/Brow/Food Bins

Time taken to collect bin missed due to the fault of the
Service - weather permitting

1 working day

Waste Time taken to collect bulky items (following customer 6 working days
Bulky Items request)
Waste Time taken to process applications for assisted bin 10 working days

Assisted Collection

collections (from receipt of application).

Waste Time taken to deliver new bins, recycling sacks/boxes, caddies etc.
Requests for new receptacles
Black/Blue Bin 6 working days
Food waste bins / caddies 6 working days
Brown Bin 6 working days
Recycling Bag 6 working days
Missed Collections Number of bins missed per 100,000 collections 80

Children's Play areas

Time taken to respond (i.e. complete job or contact
customer) to service requests about enclosed play
areas or fixed play provision

same working day

Dead Animals

Time taken to remove reported dead animals from
highway or other Council land (excluding trunk roads)

24 hours

Dog Fouling
Children's play areas

Time taken to remove dog fouling at enclosed play
areas, or areas of fixed play provision.

Within Working Day

Dog bins

Frequency of inspection/emptying of dog bins

Minimum 2 working days

Litter Bins

Respond to requests for new litter bins

10 working days

Fly posting / Graffiti

Time taken to remove graffiti from council owned
property (including Housing)

2 working days

Offensive /Hate

Time taken to remove hate graffiti from time of

Within Working Day

Graffiti reporting - 24/7 service
Fly tipping Time taken to remove fly tipping from council owned 24 hours
land (including Housing land)
Grass Cutting & Hedges Compliance with 100% As Policy

standards for grass cutting

Gully Emptying

Frequency of gully cleaning

Minimum one per annum

Gully Emptying

Frequency of gully and soakaway cleaning in known
flooding areas

Site dependant - Minimum 2 per annum

Public Conveniences

Time taken to attend and clean a reported
dirty/damaged toilet in Council operated facility

24 hours

Reactive Highway

Time taken to inspect non- emergency highways
requests

1 working day

Sharps

Time taken to remove sharp objects/needles from
Council land (including Housing and school land)

2 hours

Street Cleansing

Footways
- Frequency of sweeping Town and shopping areas

Daily - incljuding Saturdays/Sundays and Litter Picking

Street Cleansing Footways 1 per annum
- Frequency of sweeping All other locations

Street Cleansing Mechanical Sweeping A Roads and Urban B class 4 per annum
Roads

Street Cleansing Mechanical Sweeping other B class Roads 1 per annum

Street Cleansing Mechanical Sweeping All other Roads 1 per annum

Street Cleansing Mechanical Sweeping of Council maintained Car Parks 1 per annum

Tudalen 51




Street Cleansing

Inspect and empty liter bins (as required)

Minimum: Rural = 2 working days /
Urban = 1 working day

Street Furniture

Response time to make safe a reported dangerous
item of street furniture

2 hours

Street Furniture

Inspection reponse time to customers regarding repairs
to Street Furniture

10 working days

Street lighting

Time taken to repair street lighting (non mains supply
fault) - where it is the Council's responsibility

3 working days for locations assessed as vulnerable, CCTV
sensitive, traffic calming, traffic sensitive or (speed)
illuminated traffic signs and 10 working days for all other
locations (except major faults).

Street Name Signs

Time taken to replace a missing street name plate (if
replacement is required within policy)

8 weeks

Beach Cleansing

Bus Shelters

Frequency of beach cleansing (Talacre)

Time taken to respond following a requests/complaints
about bus shelters

Summer = daily inspection & visit / Winter = inspection & visit
3 times per week

10 working days

Bus Shelters Compliance with standards for cleaning bus shelters 100%
- 3 times/year urban 2 times/year rural
Environmental Visual Audits (EVA) EVA's protocol in place in Council Wards 100%
Environmental Visual Audits (EVA) Ward Priority Agreed 70%
Member Satisfaction Percentage of Members rating performance of 90%
Streetcene Coordinators Service in ward as
acceptable or better
Cleanliness Maintaining the Cleanliness index above the average 100%
figure for Wales
P&D Machines Respond to non working Pay & Display machines 1 working day

Parking Contraventions

Respond to parking complaint

Corporate standard

Environmental Crime - Dog control

Respond by undertaking site inspection to dog control
complaint

2 working days

Environmental Crime - Side waste

Monitor side waste presentation

Daily by crews

Tudalen 52




Tudalen 53



Tudalen 54



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 7

Sir'y Fflint
."ﬂm!ﬁ!}.!re

ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 7" March 2023

Report Subject Grass Cutting Policy Review: Managing Road Verges and
Amenity Grasslands to Support Biodiversity

Cabinet Member Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Streetscene and Regional Transport Strategy

Report Author Chief Officer, Streetscene and Transportation
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In response to a request from the Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, an all-member workshop was held on Tuesday, 24t January 2023 to learn
more about the management of road verges and amenity grasslands, wildflowers and
biodiversity. In particular, members sought to find out about the use of pesticides and
gain an understanding of existing policies, the action taken to date and opportunities
available to us as a local authority. The workshop was a joint portfolio event, which was
facilitated by officers from both the Planning, Environment & Economy (PE&E) portfolio
and Streetscene & Transportation (S&T) portfolio.

Under the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, public authorities must maintain and enhance
biodiversity. Sympathetic mowing of road verges and amenity grasslands can help meet
this duty.

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the work undertaken to date and
consider the opportunities for policy review in the future.

In addition, as a portfolio, Streetscene & Transportation routinely reports on the annual
performance of the grass cutting service to the Environment & Economy Overview &
Scrutiny Committee for assurance purposes. This report therefore also includes an
update on the performance of the service during 2022.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Scrutiny supports the work undertaken to date and considers the
opportunities to increase biodiversity in managing our road verges and amenity
grasslands.

2. That Scrutiny supports the proposed changes to the grass cutting policy and
supports the targeted reduction in the use of pesticides.

Tudalen 55




REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE BACKGROUND TO THE REVIEW OF HOW THE LOCAL
AUTHORITY MANAGES ROAD VERGES AND AMENITY GRASSLANDS TO
SUPPORT BIODIVERSITY

1.01

In response to a request from the Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, an all-member workshop was held on Tuesday, 24t January 2023
to learn more about the management of road verges and amenity grasslands,
wildflowers and biodiversity. In particular, members sought to find out about the
use of pesticides and gain an understanding of existing policies, the action
taken to date and opportunities available to us as a local authority. The
workshop was a joint portfolio event, which was facilitated by officers from both
the Planning, Environment & Economy (PE&E) portfolio and Streetscene &
Transportation (S&T) portfolio.

1.02

Under the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, public authorities must maintain and
enhance biodiversity. Sympathetic mowing of road verges and amenity
grasslands can help meet this duty. The Act states that all public authorities
are required, when undertaking their functions in Wales, to seek to maintain
and enhance biodiversity wherever possible within the proper exercise of their
functions. In doing so, public authorities must also seek to promote the
resilience of ecosystems.

1.03

In 2019, Welsh Government declared a climate emergency, and in 2021, the
Senedd declared a ‘nature emergency’ in recognition of human induced
declines in biodiversity. The 2019 State of Nature Report highlights that 17% of
3,902 species assessed in Wales are threatened with extinction.

1.04

As a Council, we support the declarations made by Welsh Government and, in
December 2019, elected members approved a motion to develop a clear
Climate Change Strategy, which set key aims and actions for creating a carbon
neutral organisation. Some of the ongoing work and projects that we have
undertaken include the publication of our “Supporting nature in Flintshire”
biodiversity duty plan and we are continuing to work to support biodiversity
protection and increase the proportion of Council land managed for biodiversity
in Flintshire. This includes increasing the areas with reduced mowing regimes
to enhance biodiversity and increase carbon storage.

1.05

The Well-being of Future Generations Act requires public bodies in Wales to
think about the long-term impact of decisions and is all about working with local
communities, taking a more joined up approach, looking to prevent persistent
problems in order improve the social, economic, environmental and cultural
well-being of Wales and impact of our actions on future generations.

The goal of a Resilient Wales is to reverse the decline of our biodiverse natural
environment, develop a better awareness of our impacts as individuals and
organisations, ensure we are ecologically resilient, with healthy ecosystems,
and to support community wellbeing.

1.06

As outlined, an all-member workshop was delivered jointly by S&T and PE&E
officers to present the need for change to a more biodiverse focus on our
grassland management regimes and explore the options in each area of grass

management.
Tudalen o6




1.07

The workshop addressed the following issues:

The nature emergency and importance of local biodiversity
Grassland habitat requirements

Nature isn’'t Neat: addressing key concerns

Use of Pesticides

Flintshire action to date: our support for changes

Overview of the existing grass cutting policy and opportunities: road
verges and amenity grasslands

The workshop was well attended with approximately 30 members showing
broad support for the reduction/cessation of the use of pesticides by the
authority and its contractors, along with the options being presented for change
of grass cutting policy standards.

1.08

The grass cutting policy options and opportunities to increase biodiversity are
outlined in Appendix 2, which we intend to take to the Environment & Economy
Overview Scrutiny Committee in March 2023; however, this does mean that the
2023 grass cutting season will commence prior to any changes being adopted.

Safety will remain the priority for grass cutting and there will be limited
opportunities for certain areas, such as rural road verges and visibility splays.
However, there are opportunities to collect cuttings when we cut on flat verges,
which could reduce the number of cuts required.

The main changes proposed to the policy include reduced mowing on all
suitable verges (avoiding visibility splays and banks), allowing the
grass/wildflowers to grow in certain areas and increasing the number of areas
included in reduced mow or wildflower management to improve the biodiversity.

1.09

As a portfolio, Streetscene & Transportation routinely reports on the annual
performance of the grass cutting service to the Environment & Economy
Overview & Scrutiny Committee for assurance purposes. This section provides
an update on the performance of the service during 2022, which helps us to
plan next season’s operations, as well as inform the policy review and changes
to practices.

Grass Cutting Season — Performance Overview (March 2022 — October 2022)

The 2022 season began on 15t March 2022 with reduced crews in light of
COVID risk assessments at that time, which limited the number of operatives
working together. Five crews were able to carry out grass cutting on 28" March
2022, including the cemetery grounds management team.

Crew availability was also affected by the winter maintenance schedule, as
many operatives from the grounds team were being regularly employed for road
gritting operations.

Full scale grass cutting operations were realised from 13t April 2022 with all
crews undertaking the rounds as per the planned grass cutting schedule. Due
to the adversely hot weather in July 2022, the teams were ‘stood down’
between 18/07/22 and 31/07/22 and no cuts took place during that period.

udaten 57




1.10

Performance status on 31st October as follows:

Area Cuts Completed

© (00|00 O |00 (00|00 (00

Cemeteries

Appendix 1 provides further details of the performance in relation to the
schedule of the grass cutting rounds for the 2022 season.

1.1

Opportunities

The management team is currently exploring avenues to deliver a more efficient
service for the 2023 season. These include changes to working patterns,
adoption of new working practices and delivering additional work streams in-
house such as tenants’ gardens and hedge cutting.

1.12

The acquisition of a new tractor flail arm via Welsh Government grant funding
will also help to increase productivity and reduce HAVS exposure. Biodiversity
sites are due to increase, which will allow resources to be redirected to other
areas of the business and increase the flexibility of the workforce. Partnerships
with Countryside Services are in development to facilitate more collaborative
working and shared resources, and we are also exploring the opportunities
available through social enterprise.

1.13

At the member workshop in January 2023, members expressed a level of
concern around the use of pesticides, particularly around the harmful effects on
human health, wildlife and animals, and the carcinogenic properties of such
chemicals. There was broad support by members for targeted reduction of
pesticides and the use of alternatives, such as mechanical removal of weeds or
organic sprays or opt-out schemes.

Targeted reduction would involve stopping the use of chemical herbicides within
town centres, school grounds and green spaces, for example in parks or
recreational areas, along with excluding the use of chemical herbicides in
contracted services, such as the schools’ grounds maintenance contract, and
using alternative weed control methods instead (E.g. heat-based methods,
organic sprays, manual/mechanical removal methods).

1.14

Grant funding has been made available by the Welsh Government for Local
Places for Nature (LPfN) and a grant funding has already been received for the
purchase of new plant and equipment for wildflower and weed control in 2022-
2023. A further bid is being prepared for 2023-2024.

The aim of Local Places for Nature (LPfN) is to restore and enhance natural
capital assets across Wales. Local Places for Nature intends to create Nature
on Your Doorstep, where people live, work and access public services. LPfN
contributes to wider biodiversity aims, but at a local level rather than landscape
scale, creating nature in the 'everyday places'.

Tudalen 58




LPfN is a bottom up programme and focuses on areas of deprivation, urban

and peri-urban areas or those with little or no access to nature. The ethos is
fundamentally about behavioural change and, if people engage with nature,

they value nature and will take steps to restore and enhance nature.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Flintshire County Council is committed to sustainability in its own operations, as
well as across the county more widely through climate change and carbon
reduction.

Revenue: The portfolio is currently carrying an in-year revenue pressure of
£43k, over and above the £30k revenue budget available for the weed spraying
contract, which came about following the recommendation of the Environment
& Economy Overview & Scrutiny Committee to split the contract into separate
areas to ensure more resilience in the supply market. This has been included
as an additional cost pressure in the budget for 2023-2024.

Any further changes to the policy will need to take into account the impact on
future revenue budgets. The current national and local financial position is
under increasing pressure and there is little prospect of the portfolio being able
to allocate any substantial increase in revenue funding to this non-statutory
service provision; consequently, the ongoing impacts of budget reductions will
continue to impose a downward pressure on revenue budgets. Any options
supported and recommended by the Scrutiny Committee will need to be costed
and will need to be deliverable within current budgets. Any future MTFS budget
solutions to settle a balance budget that reduce grass cutting standards will
need to be addressed and may not align to the biodiversity workshop options
supported by the Scrutiny Committee.

Capital: There may be implications for the approved capital programme for
2023-2024 and future financial years for the procurement of plant and
equipment. Any capital or revenue commitment will need to be supported
through a business case approach, taking account of full costs and possible
income sources.

Staff / Recruitment: The grounds management team appointed three newly
promoted charge hands in 2022, who all performed well, adapting to their new
roles and adding value to the operation as a whole. Many of the agency staff
employed to supplement the teams for the summer season have subsequently
been appointed into permanent roles further reducing the cost of the operation.

Plant and Equipment: The McConnell RC28 Robo Cutter, which is the mower
used to cut grass on slopes and steep banks, was subject to a recall due to
reliability issues and, as such, the team are now trialling the larger RC56 model,
which is more suited to steep inclines and bank maintenance. The replacement
tractor has performed well with very little down time for repairs and a higher
level of quality and performance. The teams have also trialled battery mowers,
strimmers and chainsaws, with a view to replacing petrol equipment and
reducing the carbon cost of the operation. The battery tools also dramatically
reduce staff exposure to HAVS. The intention is to replace all petrol equipment
with battery powered units over the next 3 years.

Tudalen 59




3.00

IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

3.01

A full integrated impact assessment will be required as part of the review of the
grass cutting policy. This strategy and the outcome of the review is expected to
have a positive differential impact on all protected characteristics.

Ways of Working (Sustainable Development) Principles Impact

Long-term

Positive impact - the proposed changes to the policy will
enhance the local environment by creating habitat for
wildlife, insects and pollinators etc. Areas where wildflowers
have been allowed to develop and flourish will enhance the
visual aesthetics of roadside verges and amenity areas and
provide residents and visitors with a ‘feel good’ factor. This
in turn will contribute to the reduction of our carbon footprint
and create a more sustainable environment for residents
now and for future generations. The changes to the policy
aim to increase the awareness of biodiversity and promote
the benefits in terms of health and well-being.

Prevention

Positive impact - the revised management regime will make
road verges and amenity grasslands (parks and other open
green spaces) more wildlife friendly. Regularly cut, closely
mown grass may look tidy, but it has little benefit for wildlife.
Letting grass grow and having more meadow-like areas with
wildflowers helps wildlife. Changes in grass cutting regimes
with cuts timed to benefit wildflowers and pollinators will
support the council’s biodiversity duty and climate change
strategy and create habitat for wildlife, insects and
pollinators, whilst also reducing our carbon footprint. A
reduction in the use of glyphosate and other herbicides /
pesticides.

Integration

Positive impact — the review of the policy will need to
integrate with other existing strategies, policies and plans of
the Council, such as the Place Making Plans, Climate
Change Strategy and the Council’s Well-Being Objectives.
It will have a positive impact on the local community and
enhance their local environments, which will create a more
resilient and healthier environment across all communities.

Collaboration

Positive impact — The proposed changes will enable closer
collaborative working with other portfolios, such as Planning,
Economy and Environment and facilitate partnership
working with Countryside Services and the Biodiversity
team, as well as voluntary sector and local community
groups,

Involvement

As a result of the global pandemic, many council services
were suspended for an extended period of time, including
grass cutting operations and grounds maintenance. This
temporary pause or reduction in service allowed many green
areas across the county to flourish with wildflowers, which
drew comments from the local community, both positive and
negative. The involvement of elected members and the local
communities in choosing which green spaces within their
areas to be nominated for wildflower meadows and habitat
for wildlife will be extremely important.

-l (| | fa¥al
Ir'udaicii OU




Well-being Goals Impact

The review of the grass cutting policy will need to have due regard for the Well
Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The policy review and inclusion
of biodiversity helps to achieve all seven of the well-being goals as set out

below.

Prosperous Wales

Positive impact - the proposed changes to the
policy will enhance the local environment by
creating habitat for wildlife, insects and pollinators
etc. Areas where wildflowers have been allowed to
develop and flourish will enhance the visual
aesthetics of roadside verges and amenity areas
and provide residents and visitors with a ‘feel good’
factor. This in turn will contribute to the reduction of
our carbon footprint and create a more sustainable
environment for residents now and for future
generations. Additionally, Biodiversity and resilient
ecosystems provide important opportunities for
economic activity and attracting more tourism to the
area, which can often involve the promotion of our
natural resources, such as parks and gardens.

Resilient Wales

Positive impact — The alternative grassland
management regime proposed in the policy review
will not only support the council’s biodiversity duty
and climate change strategy, but it will also assist
with reducing our carbon footprint.

Healthier Wales

The proposals aim to create a more resilient and
healthier environment across all communities.
Accessible natural spaces can provide direct health
benefits, such as encouraging more physical activity
(e.g. cycling, walking) and improved mental health
and well-being. For example, as well as supporting
wildlife, people enjoy seeing wildflowers.

More equal Wales

Equal access to natural spaces would contribute to
equality and will have a positive impact on all local
communities, enhancing their local environments
irrespective of background and circumstances.

Cohesive Wales

More biodiverse green spaces will enhance the
local environment and make them more attractive
for residents, visitors and wildlife. Communities
engaging in the management of their local open
spaces has been demonstrated to contribute to an
increase in social cohesion and a reduction in
Anti-social behaviour.

Vibrant Wales

The proposed changes to the policy will promote
and protect the culture, heritage and the Welsh
language, by encouraging people to participate in
the arts, sports and recreation in the outdoors and
experiencing nature.

Globally responsible
Wales

Sustainable management of amenity grasslands will
help to reduce the carbon footprint and ensure that
grass cutting operations do not have an
environmental impact.

fudalen ol




Flintshire County Council together with its partners will support the health and
well-being of both the current and future generations through the following
strategic objectives:

Protecting people from poverty by supporting them to meet their basic needs
Housing in Flintshire meeting the needs of our residents and supporting safer
communities

Limiting the impact of the Council’s services on the natural environment and
supporting the wider communities of Flintshire to reduce their own carbon
footprint

Enabling a sustainable economic recovery and growth

Supporting people in need to live as well as they can

Enabling and Supporting Learning Communities

4.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT

4.01 With the Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Streetscene
and Regional Transport Strategy

4.02 | An all-member workshop was held on 24t January 2023. A copy of the
workshop presentations is shown in Appendix 3 and feedback from the
session will be shared with the Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny
Committee and Cabinet members.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 — Grass Cutting Performance 2022
Appendix 2 — Grass Cutting Policy Review & Biodiversity Opportunities
Appendix 3 — Biodiversity & Grass Cutting Member Workshop Slides

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Welsh Government’s policy and strategy for managing road verges and amenity
grassland to support biodiversity:
https://www.gov.wales/road-verges-and-amenity-grasslands-supporting-wildlife

6.02 Biodiversity and resilience of ecosystems duty (section 6): guidance for public

authorities:

https://www.gov.wales/biodiversity-and-resilience-ecosystems-duty-section-6-

quidance-public-authorities

Tudalen 62



https://www.gov.wales/road-verges-and-amenity-grasslands-supporting-wildlife
https://www.gov.wales/biodiversity-and-resilience-ecosystems-duty-section-6-guidance-public-authorities
https://www.gov.wales/biodiversity-and-resilience-ecosystems-duty-section-6-guidance-public-authorities

7.00 | CONTACT OFFICER DETAILS
7.01 Contact Officer: Barry Wilkinson, Highway Network Manager
Telephone: 01352 704656
E-mail: barry.wilkinson@flintshire.gov.uk
8.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
8.01 Biodiversity (‘biological diversity’) = The variety of plant and animal life in the

world or in a particular habitat.

Ecosystem = A functioning unit made up of living organisms (plants / animals /
micro-organisms) within their non-living environment (air / water / minerals /
soil) and all the diverse and complex interactions that take place between them.

Resilience of ecosystems = A resilient ecosystem has the ability to respond to
disturbance by resisting damage and recovering quickly.

Tudalen 63



mailto:barry.wilkinson@flintshire.gov.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Grass cutting - Dashboard Progress Summary 2022

Streetscene and Transportation

Appendix 1 - Grass Cutting Performance 2022

Week

28/02/2022

07/03/2022

14/03/2022

21/03/2022

28/03/2022

04/04/2022

11/04/2022

ROUND 1

ROUND 2

ROUND 3

ROUND 4

ROUND 5

ROUND 6

ROUND 7

CEMS

[ TSN =N I TSN PN TN

RlRr|lRr|lRr|Rr|Rr|~]~

RlRr|lRr|lRr|Rr|Rr|~]~

N|lRr|Rr|Rr]|Rr|Rr|~]|~

N|Rr|[Rr],rIN]|R |~~~

TRACTOR

[EE

[EE

RIN|R,Rr|RIN]R]R ]|~

&

Grass rou

nd chargehands out of service due to W

M bubble

-

Week

18/04/2022

25/04/2022

02/05/2022

09/05/2022

16/05/2022

23/05/2022

30/05/2022

ROUND 1

ROUND 2

ROUND 3

ROUND 4

ROUND 5

ROUND 6

ROUND 7

CEMS

NINININININININ

WINININININININ

WlwWwlwlwlwlw]lw]w

APlWlwWlWlWlWlW]|W

TRACTOR

N

N

NIWIN|TWIWININININ

w

3

Wlh|lwlwWlh|lWIW|W]|W

wlhlw|h|R_|P|WIR]|+

Winter maintenance ope

ratives / char

gehands retu

rned to service

Week

06/06/2022

13/06/2022

20/06/2022

27/06/2022

04/07/2022

11/07/2022

18/07/2022

ROUND 1

ROUND 2

ROUND 3

ROUND 4

ROUND 5

ROUND 6

ROUND 7

CEMS

TRACTOR

EEN ROl R R R IR IS P Y

Al |lnjunjinninnin s

(S MO0 " MO O O, O, O, [ BN

(O20 Ne) N MO, N Nl o)l HU N MO, | HU, | 10, ]

ujocjnjunjocjLnjo|jun|uv

(o8 o)l Ko ) o)l o)} Ho )} o) |l Ho) i o))

Week

25/07/2022

01/08/2022

08/08/2022

15/08/2022

22/08/2022

29/08/2022

05/09/2022

ROUND 1

ROUND 2

ROUND 3

ROUND 4

NIV

ROUND 5

ROUND 6

~

NIV

~

ROUND 7

CEMS

TRACTOR

(e N NN Ko )l o)l B NE Heo )l No) | Ko) i o))

DIN|O|O|IN|IN]|[OO|o|O

NIN|[O|O|NIN|IN|IYN][Oo

Tudalen 65



Grass cutting - Dashboard Progress Summary 2022 Streetscene and Transportation

Week 12/09/2022| 19/09/2022| 26/09/2022| 03/10/2022| 10/10/2022| 17/10/2022

ROUND 1
ROUND 2
ROUND 3
ROUND 4
ROUND 5
ROUND 6
ROUND 7
CEMS
TRACTOR

Tudalen 66



Appendix 2 — Grass Cutting Policy Review & Options for Biodiversity

Grass Cutting Policy (January 2018) (current)
Biodiversity opportunities highlighted in red text (Jan 2023)
1. Roadside verges

a) Rural Verges (outside 40mph) — 1 cut per year in July (subject to weather conditions);
1 swathe width on all principal roads; 1 swathe width on all non-principal and
unclassified roads

Visibility splays at junctions 4 cuts per year in —

[
[
e August
e September/October

Full width verge cutting for weed and self-sown sapling control on all classifications of
rural roads once every 4 years in September/October.

Additional cuts may be carried out on Health and Safety grounds in specific locations as
identified by the Area Coordinators.

Rural Verges:
e Safety remains the priority
e Limited opportunity
e Opportunity to collect cuttings when we cut on flat verges — looking into bank
mowers

Option A — Visibility splays:
e Opportunity to collect cuttings — longer term impact less cuts needed,
improvements in biodiversity

b) Urban verges (within 40 mph zones) — 4 cuts per year
e April
e June
e August
e September/October

Option A — Reduced mow on all suitable verges (avoiding banks and visibility cuts)

Letting the grass/wildflowers grow, with a cut and collect once a year between August and
October
(Targeted initial communities a possibility but adds complexities)

Option B — retain cuts - collect all cuttings — on flat verges
(longer term impact reduce vigour of grasses- less cuts needed, improvements in
biodiversity (Dorset approach)

c) Cyclic
Cyclic routes on county dual carriageways

Tudalen 67



Appendix 2 — Grass Cutting Policy Review & Options for Biodiversity

Cyclic routes receive 2 cuts a year (1m swathe cut in April-July and a full cut in
September)

Option A - Retain first cut as existing.

Collect all cuttings on the second full cut where possible.

Trial cyclic cut and collect 2023 on the most appropriate cyclic route (A548 Gronant or DIP
suggested).

2. Amenity Areas

Maximum of 13 cuts per year as required.

Flexible start required for the start of the cutting season, in February/March, subject to
weather conditions.

Frequency of cuts based on every 2 weeks in April to June, extended to every 3 weeks
July to Oct, subject to weather conditions.

(Removal of grass cuttings will only take place in exceptional circumstances i.e. First-Cut
of the season)

Option A - Increase area under reduced mow or wildflower management gradually
through existing process.

Option B - Opportunity to introduce collection of cuttings on flat areas — longer term
impact less cuts needed, improvements in biodiversity

3. Public footpaths / Cycle Routes

A maximum of 4 cuts per year as required, to prevent rural footways being lost to grass
ingress and verge creep due to lack of usage.

No change proposed
4. Hedges

The majority of highway hedges are the responsibility of the adjacent landowner. Where
the hedge has grown to an extent that it is causing an obstruction to the highway user,
notice will be served on the landowner to cut the hedge accordingly. Highway hedges
owned by the Council will be cut once a year after the nesting season has passed.

Highway hedges managed by the Council will be cut a maximum of once a year, outside
of the nesting season.

Option A - Management timed between Jan - Feb maintains the availability of berries and
nuts as a food source for birds and other wildlife.
Allow 2 — 4 years between cuts where possible

5. Bus-stops
A maximum of 4 cuts per year as required across the grassed areas either side of rural
Bus-stops, up to 20 metres across the length of the stop.

Tudalen 68



Appendix 2 — Grass Cutting Policy Review & Options for Biodiversity

Option A - Retain cuts but introduce collection of cuttings— longer term impact less cuts
needed, improvements in biodiversity

6. Village / Town Gateways

A maximum of 4 cuts per year as required across the grassed areas either side of
Village/Town

Gateways signs, up to 10 metres either side of the gateway.

Option A - Retain cuts but introduce collection of cuttings — longer term impact less cuts
needed, improvements in biodiversity

7. Recreation Sports Grounds

Up to 16 cuts per year March to October. Subject to separate procurement arrangements
and direct liaison with the Schools.

No change proposed

Tudalen 69



Appendix 2 — Grass Cutting Policy Review & Options for Biodiversity

8. Cemeteries

Flexible start required for the start of the cutting season, in February/March, subject to
weather conditions. Frequency of cuts based on every 2 weeks in April to June, extended
to every 3 weeks July to Oct, subject to weather conditions.

(Removal of grass cuttings will only take place in exceptional circumstances. i.e. First-Cut
of the season)

Additional key dates outside of the cutting season to include Christmas and Mothering
Sunday.

No change proposed continued implementation of wildflower areas in cemeteries

9. Tenants Gardens

Where tenants have requested and qualify for the assisted gardening service. The service
is provided by contractors who will provide the following:

Maximum of 13 cuts per year as required.

Flexible start required for the start of the cutting season, in February/March, subject to
weather conditions.

Frequency of cuts based on every 2 weeks in April to June, extended to every 3 weeks
July to Oct, subject to weather conditions.

Option A - Collection of cuttings when cutting tenants lawns if not already done

Option B - Allow tenants to opt into a ‘wildlife friendly’ service for reduced mow to allow
grass to grow (cut and collect once a year Aug - Oct).

Additional offer for wildflower enhancement could be coordinated by biodiversity officer.
Resident engagement could also be supported by the biodiversity team.

Additions to the current policy —

10. Reduced mow/Wildflower Areas
Allow to grow then 1 cut and collect per year between August — November

11. Natural regeneration Areas

Areas to be identified for natural regeneration for carbon capture and biodiversity only
requiring essential management for safety.

Tudalen 70



T/ uarepny

Biodiversity
Member Workshop
24.01.2023

Environment & Economy Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

F

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire



Agenda / Format for the Workshop

« Welcome and introductions

* Purpose and background to the workshop

* The nature emergency and importance of local biodiversity
« Grassland habitat requirements

Nature isn’t Neat: addressing key concerns

Use of Pesticides

 Flintshire action to date: our support for changes

« Overview of the existing grass cutting policy and
opportunities: road verges and amenity grasslands

* Interactive session / Q&A
« Summary and Next Steps
* Machinery demo

z/%usredn

Slry Fflint
(" Hlintshire



Purpose and background

* Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny
Committee forward work programme

 Member enquiries
 Climate Change and Reducing Carbon Footprint
« Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
* Flintshire Climate Change Strategy (Feb 2022)
o Climate Change Programme Board

« Council Plan — Green Councill

« Joint portfolio workshop — one Councll

L usrepny

F

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire



v/ usfepnL

The importance of
local biodiversity




A nature crisis

* The UK is among the most nature depleted counties on the planet
* On average populations of mammals, birds, amphibians, reptiles

and fish have dropped by 69% since 1970
* 1 million species are threatened with extinction , many within
decades

5 “The damage we are inflicting on species and ecosystems is so
extensive and profound that scientists now believe we are
witnessing Earth’s sixth mass extinction event—the last one
marked the end of the dinosaurs.”

—David Attenborough

Siry Fflint
(" Flintshire



Exhibit 3 - Five Major Factors Drive Biodiversity Loss

Pollution of

Land-use and
¢ . sea-use change soil, water, and air
Release of harmful substances (e.g.,

' Habitat conversion (e.g., deforestation),
habitat fragmer .tatlon, md degradation through excessive chemical use) into

th I’OUgi‘l overintensive use of ecosystems ecosystems; also, “ghy_ and noise
pollution

Spread of

S Direct overexploitation
invasive species

Overexploitation of animals, plants, and

3‘ : = ecosystems in general (e.g., from poaching,
unsustainable logging, or overfishing)
(@) ‘

Plants, animals, or other nonnative
organisms entering or expanding
their presence in a given habitat

Climate change

Shifts in temperaturegprecipitation, and
wind flows caused by increased levels of
greenhouse gases n the atmosphere

A cc

Source: IPBES, "Glo 1 Biodiversity and __u»_ut N s of the Intergovernmental Science-Policy Platform on Biodiversity

(Ref:'The:2023 ééG repo;‘l: The biodiversity crisis is a business cr1515)
Sir y Fflint
-y, !
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




The importance of nature

Ecosystem services:
Clean air and water
Healthy soil
Pollination and Food
Decomposition
Water regulation

Health and Wellbeing:

* Improved mental and physical
health

Siry Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




Biodiversity related risk

Risks of inaction

* Breakdown of ecosystem
services, flooding food
supply chains

* Increased regulation and
associated costs

* Reputational risk

Siry Fflint
." Flintshire



Does It matter If we lose
species?

Loss of species from an
ecosystem likened to randomly
popping out rivets from the wing
of an aeroplane

Remove one or two and the
plane will probably be fine

Remove 10/20/50 = catastrophic
failure

Nature loss — creeping normality
due to its reduction and our
disconnection

Siry Fflint
(" Flintshire



™
A \ -

evident locally
) S

. \‘i’

“u




18 usjepnL

The Hazel dormouse: Decline

w
wn

w
o

N
wn

~
o

—
w

Mean Number of Dormice
—
o

v

]

]
]
]

2010 2011 2012 2014
Year

o

Figure 3.1 shows the average for all the sites each year, this shows that there is a steady decline
in the M. avellanarius population in Flintshire with a peek in the mean count in 2009 of 27.8.

(."'.

Siry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



Nature legislation and policy

Legislation

Regional Plans and Policies
Flintshire Plans and Policies
COP 15 - 30% of our land by
2030

Welsh Biodiversity targets
forthcoming

Siry Fflint
(" Flintshire



Local Action and Impact

* £450,000 in grant funding for
biodiversity projects and temporary
staffing enabled:

* >5000 trees

* 100 swift boxes

 T/C Councils nature suggestions

= Greener development conference

* housing maintenance works to
incorporate biodiversity features

e contaminated land for biodiversity

* Regional biodiversity awards (4/7
Flintshire winners)

* School nature proposals

* Burial sites survey/nature proposals ,\ ‘ Ll

* Ongoing: Flintshire forest, green

Siry Fflint
infrastructure, Streetscene -Flin)tlshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




We can enable success through: {
. * Collaboration 5

. *Working across departments
< *Working across sectors
+ *Being open to change
L Fostermg polltlcal and publlc support
P

dljfference you qut i‘o make Dr Jane
Glo o da || 7 :c

—-.‘,\,,



Overview of
Grasslands and
Management In

Flintshire

Siry Fflint
_"Eﬂ!_.ie!,ab.ire




Wildflower Meadows

Wildlife meadows have suffered
catastrophic declines. Between the
1930s and 1980s, 97% were lost
across England and Wales

~Traditionally grasslands are
smanaged by grazing and the
2collection of hay. This avoids
Senrichment and maintains an
Rabundance of wildflowers.

Introduction of fertiliser and
intensive grazing or silage
management meant vigorous
grasses survived and wildflowers
disappeared.

Siry Fflint
_"Eﬂ!_.ie!,ab.ire




»

»

»

»

»

Value of Verges

The 500,000 kilometres of road verges
that span the UK are equivalent to half
of the remaining flower-rich grassland.

(Plantlife 2019)

Road verges are a vital refuge for
wildlife, including 45 per cent of our

lora.
J

Q. .

LWildflower-rich meadows and
Sgrasslands are a crucial reserve for
glcdecllnlng pollinators.

Permanent grasslands including
wildflower-rich meadows are an
important store of carbon

Permanent grasslands can reduce the

impact of flooding.

o

Siry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




Natural Connections

» Verges act as corridors and
stepping stones for wildlife

» They provide people contact
with their natural environment

»,; Science tells us we are healthier
c .
S and happier around nature.

Sir'y Fflint
'5!..msglgire



Amenity Grassland Management

» Mown grassland has minimal wildflowers
and the lack of structure means thereis
very little refuge for wildlife.

» Short grassland can be transformed into a
wildflower meadow by reduced cutting

» New grasslands can be created through
the use of wildflower seed BUT.....

68 us|fepnL

CYNGOR

P i Y Filint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




To manage or not?

» Most wildflowers are associated with
low fertility soils.

No cut results in an increase in tall
grasses and herbs such as Nettle and
Hogweed and bramble.

>

A4

If cut and left, the cuttings lead to an
increase in nutrients and the tall
grasses dominate.

Use of herbicides has a similar effect.

06 Uarepny

>

\4

» Cut and collect reduces the layer of
thatch and opens up the soil surface to
allow seed germination. If repeated
slower growing species are encouraged [
that over time require less management <

Siry Fflint
_"Eﬂ!_.ie!,ab.ire




Timing of management

»

Y

T6 UafepnL

Vital that wildflowers are
able to complete their life
cycle and set seed.

Verges with woodland
spring flowers have an
earlier life cycle compared
to wildlflower meadows.

Plantlife 2019: Managing
grasslands and road verges

o

Siry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




Siry Fflint
“* Hintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



- Not alone! - .

R

S

c

La richesse naturelle de nos routes départementales

Pour préserver la biodiversité des abords de nos routes, le Conseil général du Doubs
met en ceuvre une méthode de gestion écologique : le fauchage tardif

Le Conseil géneéral du Doubs gére 3700 km de
routes départementales, ce qui représente
également une superficie de plus de 3000 ha de
dépendances (accotements, talus), dont 1a biodiversité
doit &tre préservee, A cet effet, dans une démarche
de développement durable, le Département a sou-
haité mettre en place en partenariat avec le
Conservatoire régional des Espaces Naturels (Espace
naturel Comtois), un mode de gestion respectusux de
la flore et de Ia faune des talus routiers.

Les talus routiers servent de refuge 3 de nombreuses

O plantes et animaux, dont certains trés rares et proté-

gés. Plus de 300 espéces différentes peuvent étre

— dénombrées sur les bords de routes, et certaines zones
(D abritent des espéces remarguables telles que I'Ophrys
O Abeille, une orchidée protégée, et le rare papilion
© Azuré de la Croisette

QO La priorité : concilier sécurité routiére et environne-

ment. la premiére pasie de fauchage privilégie la
visibilité pour les usagers. le deuxiéme fauchage,
tardif, permet 3 fa flore d'achever son cycle annuel de
développement

Les enjeux : des routes sires et fleurles, une biodiver-
sité préservée,

Le Doubs

cow

{ Arsré da ja Crolsette,

| Inféodé a la Gentiane
Cooisette présente sur 8
$es taks rouliers.

——
{ Lo Mzang ver, T

\ e espéce pratégée /

§Ni;'wy Fflint

e L G ek

Fauche d’entretien d’un talus routier :

s du fauchage tardif

pis de uchage

e 8D S
Taive flewri «
tauchage targe apres foraison
e,y T T A

b

& g
S s :
Accotement anmediat de sécurité =
favchage do sécurité an début de saison




¥6 usfepnL

Nature isn’'t Neat

And other concerns

F

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire



Safety

* Resident and motorist
safety will always be
our top priority

SAFETY
FIRST

G6 ¥9epn L

Internal consultation
process

ar T,



. AII P1 sites are excluded
from reduced mow

: * Consider impact on
Ky Tl w:g, recreational use of a
' space

‘,V

Healthy and diverse
places which encourage
recreational use.

CYNGOR

e I Y Filint |
“* Hintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



\ SOV
\ SAY

jepenitages parasites. *@

g 15
\ | }.*;
|
-

QY WA‘.!Q’MQ&

| vegetatlon
' °‘°T|cks associated with damp habitats §

 Study evidenced longer lawns with
no ticks




Small Mammals

31 115, P LBV B3
el ‘ * Improving biodiversity,
| " Creating habitat for nature

[88% « That includes small
@i mammals, some species
prefer longer grass'
whereas others do not.

Sy  Small mammals are
W/l attracted into homes by
food and shelter

o Gir'y Filint |3
“* Hintshire e

COUNTY COUNCIL

. 2
e



Fire Risk
""M"‘TIJ

+ Wildflower or reduced wx u’ﬁ itk ahl Ay
mow areas will not N RO TE S A
accumulate a thick | A NP
grassy thatch which W b Wi

_increases biomassand @ QTG S T T
S £ : R aadh IR

# S fireriskduetothecut | 0+ = =
~ 2 and collect ,
S mana gement AT

R | RN e ool A o

id * In cases of extremely (SRS WaIN T
Ha dry summer weather ** ° TRl o
“  fire breaks can be cut %“ G
in larger areas of long

& AT

¢ -"" ol FAR ,L:\ Nt A oA | ey |
o4, 8rass AR Yo i AL
| a &.\ . \_,'5,'; <t #“ )
' Q" Bt e W i 4

I\

it W A R N R
‘ TN T ¥ »3 'I‘ ‘ .'n'r‘,‘_‘ = R » \‘ ! 4 l' It -
“‘M R \‘ o RN ""”M :\Mf ‘&‘# ‘h" 'dv‘ ey 44 e ¥ Rk 2o “ ‘
j“‘ W{&o"z 1) ANk ’cls-uf\! \ 1 k n YL A S b o N R R



lBehaviour‘ k \

R " N .
* Concerns regarding behaviour
< associated with longer
« grass/wildflowers include:

e Antisocial behaviour
Q

* Bitter

e Bog fouling

 Need to address the cause of the
problem not the symptom

* Creating nature devoid places

will not solve behavioural issues
\ i 3
e Support improved behaviour at

ites
h Si

RN ™M TR B e



4| * Biggest concern when consulting on

A : \ .\“ \ o' : 3> -.‘:\... e ,'n‘\ ;"" \'
1 gy { .:.' 5 ;, y \ .‘ -"' ‘3.'\ A;#ﬁ .,-‘;"' O t\\,‘ 13\--“, \ .’9. m,} . . \\‘\.r Ww
Lhoy ."." ) v | g 3 4 y 4 . AL \- 3 nwWxr ‘:'.
A ST SNl WS R .'v'«ff‘il“’%‘.'\ gq\'-if'-.‘." : »\3-& ) N\ ‘&ZJ‘ AN A “”ﬁ
"o hl ¥ w '\ L% 105 ‘
’ o LN R Ay ' ) |

reduced mow or wildflower areas

| » Perspective

YA + Short mown lawns: social norm

associated with being cared for, neat,
security and wealth

CYNGOR

T O Y Fflint &
Fllntshlre ‘

COUNTY COUNCIL

) L




Perception

: s 5
.'9;!,)‘\9,-!" W b




3 '\n J
' LR SRS Ty

But we can demonstrate

| that sites are cared for

' and intentional and
Bromote the multiple
enefits

C
Qo

Appropriate locations

Mown borders and
desire lines

Reduced management
is clearly intentional

Interpretation/Signage
Member consultation




B5126 H
Connah's Quay, Wales

= 2 Google

@ v Street View - Oct 2018

B5126
Connah's Quay, W=les

2 Google

@ ~ Street View - May 2022




Mown paths




M&’d» FON |

Mown borders
nag




AN B e S

Having had so many likes and comments from people about the beautiful verges and field of
wildflowers planted in Buckley by our CC. | agree we need this to be spread more widely. We have 3
many areas to fill. | have put the video here | took so those who haven't seen the flowers can see [
them in their full glory.

inging dog back thr
nging dog back thro
psﬂ,a - Ei'
1074 ’rujr me ’rel’r |I|-"-‘ a I|’r’rle escape for ¢ -Juple mins
‘ AT AR A '
ad s VAT R N A N .
" They are doing this all aver Flints hire now and it is a brilliant |r1ca
AN LRVEREG OV N o TEEE SR W N WA SN

,41, ,ﬁm C Vet f to Mold later along

Tha’r I unning !! &

flowers as | pa'; ‘Ion &
!'

’ ° .-
e TR 7 TS iy SO LIRS <N Ny o
g Beautiful well done Q \~ & [ hey ha one this on the field over the bridge street field it looks beautiful

E LT o\ L g S 1 - P LS N

ey =t /8 IV



A N

Council 0 Following

SRAE

Flintshire
16.2K Tweets
Flintshire Council £ @FlintshireCC - Nov 29

This autumn we’ve sowed wildflower seed on a number of road verges and
roundabouts in Flintshire! By creating more meadows we are helping to
address the climate and ecological emergency.

Watch out for an explosion of colour next summer on these new mini-
meadows!




e Understanding and promoting the big

multiple benefits of our actions - which

> go beyond neat and tidy




OTT usfepnlL

Flintshire wildflower
sites and grassland
management

Action to date: An overview

F y

CCCCCC

Flintshire



Timeline

PRE 2019

« 18 White post
verges

* Specific
management

* Not
implemented

2019

Commitments
« Improve management

of white t ver
Establish 5 new trial
wildflower sites
publicity around the
work.
Improve cross dept
working with specific
Streetscene staff

2020

¢ Invest in
machinery

* Creation of
new sites.

2021

Invest in
machinery
Creation of
new sites
Map sites

2022

* |nvest in
machinery

e Creation of
new sites

* Refine
process

D

CYNGOR

T i Y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



Our Approach

Our approach aims to support meadow restoration by;
* Limiting seed introduction to urban sites with low existing
= diversity

%The best approach for nature is to improve grassland diversity
gradually through the correct management)

However

* There is value in the burst of colour, the quick results and
impact of seeding especially in high visibility / footfall sites

Slry Fflint
(" Hlintshire



ETT uajepny

Types of wildflower sites
A balance

Created sites: Seeded or wildflower turf (restricted to
urban sites with low existing wildflower diversity)

Reduced mow sites: We allow the grass and
wildflowers to grow with the aim of long term
restoration to flower rich meadow

Naturally diverse sites: We support restoration to
flower rich meadow

Slry Fflint
(" Hlintshire



-
5,
=
o
—y—
O

W

y Fflint
Fllntsh!re

Sir




g After a few years of reduced
|n|t|al Reduced mow mow with ca/ttinscollcted

T - L/

Siry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

-y




Sites

et b—‘
=T 2 M T
c
o - Y
D o
D
=)
= o
=
(@)] *
!
———
A e 2
= ‘vo
et ] o
g

CYNGOR

T i Y Filint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL



Sites

Legend

Wildflower Sites
Status

. Active

. Proposed

Ongoing

. On Hold

Raikes Lane

[ =
2 Ewloe Green
a
5 |d-Road
Soughton B Mo
[B5127
Aaga| 5 3
g 3
. 8
Alltami &
Pinfold Lane \.f“
New Brighton Industrial Estate ~
A5119) ®
Spencer )
Industrial >
- o Estate g
T ~ | % S
|Z Edit <r> Get directions ®\ Zoom to £, 2
Ysgol Uwchradd >
{ Elfed High 2
School <T / } ~
.
Wildflower Sites ACTIVE 2021 O X N
o o 2
< ; =
Status Active £l o, 5
= o r;
kle =
Site Name Mold: County Hall New Meadow Buckley Brunsy, 2
| Wick Roaqd o
Site Description Created (Seed) o
2 Chester
Site Manager/Dept FCC County Hall Site manager é
B ) e
y \S
Management Annual cut and collect (mid Aug QO\\(’ D
of
-mid Oct) W0ed® Lane
|
T i = ¢,
T § 'wlanp
% &
% > +
® &
9% 5 —
& Astig]
\c,‘
Garmi Powered by Esri

CYNGOR

Sir y Fflint
“* Elintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Wo,



Sites

e 098 sites

e Area ll.8Ha

e 69 Sites /8.6Ha managed by Streetscene

4.3% Streetscene maintained ground being managed for biodiversity

8TT usfepnlL

Siry Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




Wildflower site type

Reduced Mow
7.2%

Naturally diverse
18.6%

6TT Ua/epnL

Created (Seed/Turf)
74.2%

Siry Fflint
.'Eo!i!a!o%!z.ire



Resources and Capacity

chemical weed
control

2ractor and'
=)
vlco‘l‘l_ect

== )

K Grillo cut and collect
. mower

Slry Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




Education and Engagement

e All sites have Oak marker posts

e Public response: overwhelmingly positive

e No Mow May publicity well received

e A public green spaces survey was undertaken in 2022.

Headline statistics received are as follows:
_|

The majority of respondent’s consider the maintenance of their green spaces as
adequate

AT

reeling safe and secure” was ranked as most important when visiting local

green space with

“A diverse and healthy natural environment” ranked in second.

84.6% of respondent’s wanted to see local greenspace improved for nature.

Sir y Fflint
.'Eo!i!a!o%!z.ire



Project targets & future opportunities

Short term 22/23:

Grass cutting disposal solutions
In-house training

Active travel routes.

Share of specialist machinery

In the field management recording

QR code site information

A public recording campaign for wildlife
Grass cutting policy

; F1i12
L pavals Laidd
Lo Ll |9 Wi nh

Siry Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




Medium term /5 years:

« Manage 25% (49.6Ha)

Long term /Over 5 years:

To manage all appropriate maintained estate for wildflower diversity.

Siry Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




Pesticides in Flintshire




» Pesticides are chemical or biological products used to
Kill or control living organisms

» Types of Pesticide: Herbicides, Insecticides and
Fungicides, Rodenticides, Molluscicides and Nematicides

What are they?

» Glyphosate is the most widely used herbicide in the
world

GZT usfepnl

» In 2015, the WHO’s International Agency for Research on
Cancer (IARC) labelled glyphosate as “probably
carcinogenic”




Why we need to stop using chemical
herbicides

Effects on Human Health
» Low concentrations: damage to liver, kidney and skin cells.

9T usfepnlL

» Repeated exposure: Parkinson’s disease; asthma and other respiratory diseases;
infertility, pregnancy problems, and birth defects; and cancer, including
leukaemia and non-Hodgkin’s lymphoma.

» High concentrations: can cause harmful or lethal effects after a single episode
of ingestion, inhalation or skin contact.

» Children are more at risk

» Exposure: Towns and cities, farmland and rural communities, homes and
gardens, and via our food




Why we need to stop
using chemical
herbicides

Effects on the Environment

» Reduction of wildflowers = insect declines

» Pollution of the air, water and soils

» Bad for bees

LcT usfepnyL

» The evidence supporting the long-term
negative impacts of Glyphosate for people and
the environment, warrant a move away from
its use in a timely manner.




Herbicide Use in Flintshire

1150 litres

» Where: block paving in town centres, greenspaces, along curb edges, school
grounds and invasive species

» Curb spraying contract = £50,000/year

8¢T usfepnlL

= spot-spray 11,000km of curb

= One spray in June with optional revisit in September

» Issues: complaints, mileage, cost




Options for

Reductions




1) Targeted Reduction

» Stop use of chemical herbicides within town centres, school grounds, and
greenspaces

O€T usfepnlL

» Numerous councils including Lewe's district council no longer use chemical
weed killers in any of their parks, open spaces or children'’s play areas

» Change contract for school grounds maintenance to exclude the use of
chemical herbicides (46 schools)

» Explore policy changes for tenant farms and council owned allotments to
restrict the use of pesticides




2) Use of Alternatives

Alternatives:

>

>

Heat-based methods: Battery powered weed
burners, Flame guns and Foamstream

Organic sprays: vinegar, lemon juice, citronella
etc.

Manual removal methods: Hoeing or weeding,
Road sweepers

Invest in alternatives and trial their
effectiveness for different areas

Re-direct the curb spraying contract costs to
cover an in house member of staff to use/trial
alternatives



Tudalen 132




2) Use of Alternatives

Alternatives:

>

>

Heat-based methods: Battery powered weed
burners, Flame guns and Foamstream

Organic sprays: vinegar, lemon juice, citronella
etc.

Manual removal methods: Hoeing or weeding,
Road sweepers

Invest in alternatives and trial their
effectiveness for different areas

Re-direct the curb spraying contract costs to
cover an in house member of staff to use/trial
alternatives



3) Opt-Out Schemes

» Residents can opt-out of pesticide use on
their street by committing to maintaining
part, or all, of their road or street, through
weeding

» People can do this either individually, or as
part of a residential group

vET usfepny

» Lambeth Councils Community Weeding
Scheme had 130 streets involved

» Option to leave some beneficial weeds




» In 2019 France banned the use and sale of all non-
agricultural pesticides

Leading the
way

» Germany and Austria have have announced intentions to
end the use of glyphosate over the next few years.

GET usfepnlL

» Over 80 councils across the UK have either entirely
stopped or significantly reduced use of using these
chemicals




Wales Aims

» This video is of Julie James, Welsh Governments
Minister for Climate Change talking to the
wildlife trust about the need for reduction of
pesticides by local authorities

» https://www.linkedin.com/posts/craig-
bennett3_climate-cop15-montreal-activity-
7009602443835527169-

Ykk1?utm source=share&utm_ medium=member
android

» Skip to 1:27



https://www.linkedin.com/posts/craig-bennett3_climate-cop15-montreal-activity-7009602443835527169-Ykk1?utm_source=share&utm_medium=member_android

References

» Pesticide Action Network UK 2017, Pesticide Action Network UK offical website, viewed 23
January 2023, < https://www.pan-uk.org/health-effects-of-pesticides/>.

» Pesticide Action Network UK 2017, Pesticide Action Network UK offical website, viewed 23
January 2023, < https://www.pan-uk.org/effects-pesticides-women-children/>.

» Pesticide Action Network UK 2017, Pesticide Action Network UK offical website, viewed 23
January 2023, < https://www.pan-uk.org/our-environment/>.

Goulson, D., 2021. Silent Earth: Averting the Insect Apocalypse. Random House. Pp.120-134.

Ball, L., Still, R., Riggs, A., Skilbeck, A., Shardlow, M., Whitehouse, A. and Tinsley-Marshall,
P., 2022. The Bugs Matter Citizen Science Survey: Counting insect'splats’ on vehicle number
plates.

» Van Bruggen, A.H., He, M.M., Shin, K., Mai, V., Jeong, K.C., Finckh, M.R. and Morris Jr, J.G.,
2018. Environmental and health effects of the herbicide glyphosate. Science of the total
environment, 616, pp.255-268.

LET usfepnyL

» Cressey, D., 2015. Widely used herbicide linked to cancer. Nature, 24, pp.1-3.




Thank you for listening




Flintshire County Council.

Grass Cutting Policy (January 2018)

[ Biodiversity opportunity in red (Jan 2023) ]

1. Roadside verges

a) Rural Verges (outside 40mph) - 1 cut per year in July (subject to weather conditions)
[0 1 swathe widths on all principal roads

1 1 swathe width on all non-principal and unclassified roads

Visibility splays at junctions 4 cuts per year in —
O April

[0 June

1 August

[0 September/October

Full width verge cutting for weed and self-sown sapling control on all classifications of
rural roads once every 4 years in September/October

Additional cuts may be carried out on Health and Safety grounds in specific locations as
identified by the Area Coordinators.

ﬁ?ural Verges: \

e Safety priority

e Limited opportunity

e Opportunity to collect cuttings when we cut on flat verges — looking into bank
mowers

Visibility splays:

e Opportunity to collect cuttings — longer term impact less cuts needed,
improvements in biodiversity

N /

Tudalen 139



b) Urban verges (within 40 mph zones) — 4 cuts per year
0 April

[0 June

1 August

[0 September/October

K Option A — Reduced mow on all suitable verges (avoiding banks and visibility \
cuts)

Letting the grass/wildflowers grow, with a cut and collect once a year between
August and October

(Targeted initial communities a possibility but adds complexities)

e Option B — retain cuts - collect all cuttings — on flat verges
(longer term impact reduce vigour of grasses- less cuts needed, improvements in
biodiversity (Dorset approach)

N /

c) Cyclic

Cyclic routes on county dual carriageways

Cyclic routes receive 2 cuts a year (1m swathe cut in April-July and a full cut in
September)

e Option: Retain first cut as existing. \
Collect all cuttings on the second full cut where possible.

Trial cyclic cut and collect 2023 on the most appropriate cyclic route (Gronant or DIP
suggested).

N J

Tudalen 140



2. Amenity Areas
Maximum of 13 cuts per year as required.

Flexible start required for the start of the cutting season, in February/March, subject to
weather conditions.

Frequency of cuts based on every 2 weeks in April to June, extended to every 3 weeks
July to Oct, subject to weather conditions.

(Removal of grass cuttings will only take place in exceptional circumstances i.e. First-
Cut of the season)

ﬂ)ption A \

e Increase area under reduced mow or wildflower management gradually through
existing process.

Option B:

e Opportunity to introduce collection of cuttings on flat areas — longer term impact
less cuts needed, improvements in biodiversity

o /

3. Public footpaths / Cycle Routes

A maximum of 4 cuts per year as required, to prevent rural footways being lost to grass
ingress and verge creep due to lack of usage.

4. Hedges

The majority of highway hedges are the responsibility of the adjacent land owner.
Where the hedge has grown to an extent that it is causing an obstruction to the highway
user, notice will be served on the land owner to cut the hedge accordingly. Highway
hedges owned by the Council will be cut once a year after the nesting season has
passed.

/ Highway hedges managed by the Council will be cut a maximum of once a year, outsicb
of the nesting season.

Option: Management timed between Jan - Feb maintains the availability of berries and
nuts as a food source for birds and other wildlife.

Allow 2 — 4 years between cuts where possible

- /

Tudalen 141




5. Bus-stops

A maximum of 4 cuts per year as required across the grassed areas either side of rural
Bus-stops, up to 20 metres across the length of the stop.

e Retain cuts but introduce collection of cuttings— longer term impact less cuts
needed, improvements in biodiversity

6. Village / Town Gateways

A maximum of 4 cuts per year as required across the grassed areas either side of
Village / Town

Gateways signs, up to 10 metres either side of the gateway.

e Retain cuts but introduce collection of cuttings — longer term impact less cuts
needed, improvements in biodiversity

7. Recreation Sports Grounds

Up to 16 cuts per year March to October. Subject to separate procurement
arrangements and direct liaison with the Schools.

8. Cemeteries

Flexible start required for the start of the cutting season, in February/March, subject to
weather conditions. Frequency of cuts based on every 2 weeks in April to June,
extended to every 3 weeks July to Oct, subject to weather conditions.

(Removal of grass cuttings will only take place in exceptional circumstances. i.e. First-
Cut of the season)

Additional key dates outside of the cutting season to include Christmas and Mothering
Sunday.

0 change proposed continued implementation of wildflower areas in cemeteries

Tudalen 142



9. Tenants Gardens

Where tenants have requested and qualify for the assisted gardening service. The
service is provided by contractors who will provide the following:

Maximum of 13 cuts per year as required.

Flexible start required for the start of the cutting season, in February/March, subject to
weather conditions.

Frequency of cuts based on every 2 weeks in April to June, extended to every 3 weeks
July to Oct, subject to weather conditions.

/~ e Option A: Collection of cuttings when cutting tenants lawns if not already done "\

e Option B: Allow tenants to opt into a ‘wildlife friendly’ service for reduced mow to
allow grass to grow (cut and collect once a year Aug - Oct).

e Additional offer for wildflower enhancement could be coordinated by biodiversity
officer. Resident engagement could also be supported by the biodiversity team.

- /

\

0. Reduced mow/Wildflower Areas
Allow to grow then 1 cut and collect per year between August — November

-

J
1/1. Natural regeneration Areas )

Areas to be identified for natural regeneration for carbon capture and biodiversity only
requiring essential management for safety.

- J

Tudalen 143



v¥T usfepny

Next Steps

« Collate and share feedback

 FAQs / summary of responses

* Review of grass cutting policy and performance 2022
« Scrutiny — 7t March 2023

« Cabinet — 14" March 2023

« Adopt new policy — April 2023

Slry Fflint
(" Hlintshire



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 8

Sir'y Fflint
“'E!Emo%b.!re

ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 7" March 2023
Report Subject Local Toilet Strategy Review
Cabinet Member Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for

Streetscene and Regional Transport Strategy

Report Author Chief Officer, Streetscene and Transportation
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In July 2017, the Public Health (Wales) Act 2017 received Royal Assent, bringing
together a range of practical actions for improving and protecting health. Part 8 of the
Act includes Provision of Toilets and introduces new responsibilities for Local Authorities
to provide local toilet strategies.

To deliver a strategic approach to the provision of toilets across Wales, the Public
Health (Wales) Act 2017 requires Local Authorities to assess local needs and facilities,
and to publish a local toilets strategy for its area.

Since 2012, Flintshire County Council has undertaken two separate reviews of toilet
provision across the County. These reviews highlighted that isolated facilities regularly
attract antisocial behaviour, which puts people off using them. As a result, Flintshire
adopted a more enabling approach by promoting the use of existing toilets in Council
buildings, such as libraries and Connects Centres, which people feel more confident
and comfortable using.

Flintshire’s current local toilet strategy was approved and published in May 2019.
National guidelines state that the policy should be reviewed every two years from when
the local authority last published or last reviewed its strategy, and within one year of
every ordinary local government election.

Flintshire County Council is required to review and provide an ‘end of period’ progress
statement for the local toilet strategy within a year of each ordinary election for its area.
The local government election date in Wales was on Thursday 5 May 2022, which
means that the latest date for review is due by Thursday, 4 May 2023. The purpose of
this report is to provide an overview of the legislative background and set out how the
Council intends to review the current strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Scrutiny supports the proposed review of the local toilet strategy and

approves the intended approach.and timesial,qs set out in this report.
rddaier! L4o




REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE BACKGROUND TO THE LOCAL TOILET STRATEGY
REVIEW

1.01

The Public Health (Wales) Act 2017 (‘the Act’) received Royal Assent on the 3
July 2017. The Act brings together a range of practical actions for improving
and protecting health. Part 8 of the Act introduces provision of toilets and
specifically local toilets strategies. The aim of Part 8 is to ensure each local
authority (LA) in Wales assesses the needs of its community in relation to
toilets, and then takes a strategic and transparent approach to best meet that
need.

1.02

To achieve this, the Act places a duty on each LA in Wales to prepare and
publish a local toilets strategy for its area. The Act provides that a strategy must
include an assessment of the community’s need for toilets, including changing
facilities for babies and changing places facilities for people with disabilities.
The strategy must also provide details of how the LA proposes to meet the
identified need. There is no requirement for the strategies to be presented

to the Welsh Government for approval, as the strategies should be subject to
LAs’ existing scrutiny structures and public scrutiny.

1.03

The duty to prepare a local toilet strategy does not require LAs to provide and
maintain public toilets directly nor are they required to provide additional
dedicated facilities. Local authorities must, however, take a strategic view on
how facilities can be provided and accessed by the local population, taking
account of such things as location, accessibility, facilities, frequency of use and
quality of existing sites, as well as determining whether additional or fewer sites
are required by their local population.

The legislation published by Welsh Government has no funding for additional
provisions attached to it. The aim of Part 8 of the Public Health (Wales) Act
2017 is to encourage a broader consideration of options available for providing
toilets for public use including traditional stand-alone toilets as well as those in
private ownership. It is intended to help address the current challenges faced
by Local Authorities in continuing to sustain provision during times of
substantial financial pressures.

1.04

It was agreed in the Streetscene & Transportation Programme Board in
October 2022 that this review should show more ambition towards the standard
of facilities that we provide and it was agreed that the Environment & Economy
Overview & Scrutiny Committee should be part of the consultation process.

It was also agreed that public consultation should be undertaken through public
guestionnaire and Equalities and Environmental Impact Assessments should be
undertaken. Subsequently, it is the intention that a full review of the strategy will
be presented to Cabinet in April/May 2023 prior to a statutory 12-week
consultation period of the final draft.

1.05

Flintshire County Council may review its strategy at any time, following which it
must publish a statement of the steps that it has taken in accordance with the
strategy. If, following a review, the council decided to revise the strategy, it is
required publish the revised strategy and then prepare an interim progress
report covering the two-year period commencing from the date of publication.

Tudalen 146




1.06

It is envisaged that the new action plan within the Local Toilet Strategy will set
out the following ambitions:

e Capital investment to improve facilities offered

e Improved availability of changing places across the county

e Consideration of water usage/rainwater harvesting, in line with the climate
change action plan and strategy for the council

e Review of the existing contractual arrangements / procurement

e Consideration of community asset transfer, where appropriate and feasible

1.07

Below is an indicative timetable for the review: -

Timetable for implementation Report to be Date of the
prepared by Meeting

Informal Cabinet report 10 Feb 2023 28 Feb 2023

E&E Overview & Scrutiny report 17 Feb 2023 07 Mar 2023

Start consultation questionnaire — 21 days 08 Feb 2023

Analyse results - write draft strategy

Cabinet 21 April 2023 23 May 2023
Open 12-week consultation on new strategy
To be closed around 16th Aug 2023

Take findings back to Cabinet TBC - following 16th Aug 2023

Adoption of new strategy around Sept/Oct 2023

1.08

The previous 2019 strategy had a 12-point action plan, many of the intentions
were adversely affected through the pandemic period. It should also be noted
that the structural condition of the facilities provided in both Talacre and
Holywell (as was the case with the Mold, New Street Facilities) have
deteriorated considerably recently and are in dire need of capital investment to
repair and upgrade them.

Recent repairs and maintenance to damage caused by flooding and vandalism
have incurred additional costs, which has created a pressure of £23k on the
existing revenue budget over and above the £89k available budget.

1.09

The provision of local toilets for public use is not a statutory requirement of LAs
in Wales. Therefore, due to unprecedented financial cutbacks within local
government, Flintshire, like many other LAs, has closed down its traditional
standalone public toilet blocks. This strategy aims to mitigate potential impacts
by making toilets in more council facilities available for public use and to work
with the private sector to help promote their facilities.

It is recognised that the previous strategy did not necessarily live up to the
priorities and values of the council, as well as those of a number of public
interest groups, who are aware of the requirements expected of the council to
have a public toilet strategy. These groups have contacted the council’s
leadership several times to challenge the current provision and support
improved facilities.

Recently upgraded facilities provided in Mold resulted in significant local
criticism following their introduction and are seen as insufficient on the grounds
of DDA 1995 and “Changing Places” specification.

Tudalen 147




The new strategy will therefore look to raise the standard of the facilities across
the county over the next 4-5 years. Through this strategy, we aim to provide
accessible, clean toilets in the most appropriate locations. We also aim to
secure the future of current provision as well as looking at ways to increase the
number of public toilets available and improving access to all groups of people.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

Flintshire County Council is committed to sustainability in its own operations as
well as across the county more widely through climate change and carbon
reduction.

Revenue: The portfolio is currently carrying a pressure of £23k over and above
the £89k revenue budget available for maintaining the existing public
conveniences and any additional provision will need to take into account the
impact on future revenue budgets for the ongoing cleaning, maintenance and
repairs. The current national and local financial position is under increasing
pressure and there is little prospect of the portfolio being able to allocate any
substantial increase in revenue funding to this non-statutory service provision;
consequently, the ongoing impacts of budget reductions will continue to impose
a downward pressure on revenue budgets. When planning the future provision
of local toilets, we have to consider the current financial constraints on the
service area as well as ongoing future budget reductions. Cleaning and
maintenance operations and standards will need to be reviewed on a periodic
basis to ensure the most efficient and effective provision within allocated
resources.

Capital: There may be implications for the approved capital programme for
2023-2024 and future financial years. The existing toilet facilities are in old
structures or standalone facilities, which can make them difficult to maintain and
they are in need of significant capital investment, which is limited. Additionally,
the Public Health (Wales) Act 2017 as published by Welsh Government has no
funding opportunities for LAs to utilise or additional provisions attached to it.

Unfortunately, public toilets can also become a magnet for anti-social behaviour
such as drug taking and vandalism, which can impact the provision and cause
significant damage. Any capital or revenue commitment will need to be
supported through a business case approach, taking account of full costs and
possible income sources.

Human Resources: there are no implications for additional capacity or for any
change to current workforce structures or roles at the present time.

3.00

IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

3.01

A full integrated impact assessment will be required as part of the review of the
local toilet strategy. An impact assessment is not provided with this report as
this report provides an overview of the legislative requirements and sets out the
purpose and timescales for the forthcoming review. This strategy and the
outcome of the review is expected to have a positive differential impact on all
protected characteristics.

lTudalen 1438




Toilets for public use matter to everybody outside the home environment,
whatever the reason, and they remain a sensitive and high-profile concern.
Toilets are, however, even more important to certain groups within society,
including older people, people with disabilities, people with particular needs
(including certain medical problems), women, children and young people and
their families.

These groups can be disproportionately affected by poor provision of toilets; for
example, poor provision is understood to have particular negative impacts on
older people, as some may be less likely to leave their homes without having
confidence that adequate facilities will be available to them. This can contribute
to increased social isolation and inactivity, as well as affecting people’s ability to
maintain independence and dignity in later life. When considering toilet
provision in Flintshire, we also need to consider local people and visitors alike.

The strategy is aimed to increase the identifiable / publically available toilet
facilities across the city; meaning, a reduction in individuals needing to travel
extensive distances to public conveniences and identify accessible and age
permissible / suitable facilities.

Ways of Working (Sustainable Development) Principles Impact

Long-term Positive - The strategy aims to mitigate potential
impacts by making toilets in more facilities identifiable
and available for public use, and to work with the
private sector to help promote their facilities.
Prevention Positive — The provision of and access to toilets is an
issue that affects public health. Accessible, clean toilets
that are well located in places such as town centres,
parks and near public transport hubs or active travel
routes (for cycling and walking) can help encourage
people to socialise take exercise and stay more
physically active. This has clear health and economic
benefits. Conversely, a lack of adequate toilet facilities
can impact on a person’s physical and mental health,
as well as affecting the wider environmental health of
the population.

Integration Positive - The review of the strategy will need to
integrate with other existing strategies, policies and
plans of the Council, such as the Place Making Plans,
the Integrated Transport Strategy, Climate Change
Strategy and the Council’'s Well-Being Objectives.
Collaboration Positive — The review of the strategy will explore
options for partnership working with establishments
that have high quality toilet provision and collaborate to
find share sustainable solutions.

Involvement Positive — The provision of toilets can make a
significant impact upon the comfort of individuals and
families who visit public spaces and their perception of
the area as a desirable place to visit. The consultation
aims to involve a diversity of population in the decisions
affecting them.

Tudalen 149




Well-being Goals Impact

The review of the local toilet strategy will need to have due regard for the Well
Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The provision of toilet facilities

and the strategic way forw
as set out below.

ard helps to achieve all seven of the well-being goals

Prosperous Wales

The review will need to consider the impact of the
strategy on the economy and in particular the
importance of tourism. The availability of clean,
accessible public toilets can make a positive
difference and improve the quality of the visitor
experience, thereby growing the local economy and
tourism.

Resilient Wales

The provision of public toilet facilities will need to
minimise the impact on the environment.
Opportunities for more eco-friendly toilets will be
explored as part of the review e.g. rain-water
harvesting.

Healthier Wales

The provision of and access to toilets is an issue
that affects public health. Accessible, clean toilets
that are well located in places such as town centres,
parks and near public transport hubs or active travel
routes (for cycling and walking) can help encourage
people to socialise, take exercise and stay more
physically active, which helps to maximise physical
and mental well-being. Conversely, a lack of
adequate toilet facilities can impact on physical and
mental health, as well as affecting the wider
environmental health of the population.

More equal Wales

In reviewing the strategy, consideration will be given
to our duties under the Equality Act, such as the
provision of “Changing Places” and gender neutral
toilets, as well as standard accessible toilets.

Cohesive Wales

We will continue to work with the police,
town/community councils, residents, local
businesses, voluntary sector partners and
community groups to ensure that public toilet
facilities are as safe as possible and ensure that as
many facilities are available where and when they
are needed.

Vibrant Wales

Signposting and mapping publicly available toilets
will be important so that those who need to visit a
facility, can easily access information about the
location, opening/closing times, accessibility and
suitability of the toilets. In doing so, the strategy will
ensure that we meet our obligations under the
Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and the
Welsh Language Standards, and provide
information in both Welsh and English.

Globally responsible
Wales

N/A

[udalen 150




Flintshire County Council together with its partners will support the health and
well-being of both the current and future generations through the following
strategic objectives:

e Protecting people from poverty by supporting them to meet their basic needs

e Housing in Flintshire meeting the needs of our residents and supporting safer
communities

¢ Limiting the impact of the Council’s services on the natural environment and
supporting the wider communities of Flintshire to reduce their own carbon
footprint

e Enabling a sustainable economic recovery and growth

e Supporting people in need to live as well as they can

e Enabling and Supporting Learning Communities

4.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT

4.01 With the Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Streetscene
and Regional Transport Strategy

4.02 | Streetscene & Transportation Programme Board (October 2022)

4.03 | Consultation will be carried out with the Environment & Economy Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

4.04 A 12-week public consultation will be held as part of the review, commencing in
May 2023.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 None

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Welsh Government has published statutory guidance to help local authorities
produce a local toilet strategy for their area:
https://www.gov.wales/toilets-public-use-guidance-local-authorities

7.00 | CONTACT OFFICER DETAILS

7.01 Contact Officer: Barry Wilkinson, Highway Network Manager
Telephone: 01352 704656
E-mail: barry.wilkinson@flintshire.gov.uk

8.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

8.01 Changing Place(s): these are fully accessible toilets with a height adjustable

changing bench, a hoisting system, a peninsular toilet, and enough space for a
person with a disability, his/her wheelchair and two carers

Tudalen 151



https://www.gov.wales/toilets-public-use-guidance-local-authorities
mailto:barry.wilkinson@flintshire.gov.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 9

Sir'y Fflint
."ﬂm!ﬁ!}.!re

ENVIRONMENT AND ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 7t March 2023
Report Subject Capacity Review at Flintshire County Council Cemeteries
Cabinet Member Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for

Streetscene and Regional Transport Strategy

Report Author Chief Officer, Streetscene & Transportation
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As part of the forward work programme, the Environment & Economy Overview &
Scrutiny Committee requested a report on the capacity of the county’s cemeteries,
whilst also seeking an update on a number of ongoing capital projects and services
provided by Bereavement Services.

Over the recent years, there has been an increasing risk and challenge around the
capacity within the existing cemeteries and the availability of future burial space,
particularly at Hawarden (No. 2) cemetery and Buckley cemetery. Without action being
taken to address these shortages, deceased residents may no longer be able to be
buried in their local cemetery with other family members and loved ones.

Additionally, a motion was proposed to the Climate Change Committee on 25" January
2023 for the Council to consider alternatives to traditional burials and cremation, such
as columbaria* as an option for the deceased. A recommendation was made by the
Climate Change Committee to Cabinet and the Scrutiny Committee that the Council
should seek to expand its current suite of bereavement and burial services for the
deceased to include columbaria in the short term, whilst also exploring the viability of
other environmentally friendly bereavement options, such as resomation**, in the longer
term.

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to members on the existing burial
capacity within Flintshire cemeteries and an overview of the options for reviewing and
increasing this capacity.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 That Scrutiny notes the current capacity levels at each of the county’s
cemeteries and supports the need to increase capacity at critical sites.

Tudalen 153



That Scrutiny supports an application for additional capital funding for the
progression of Hawarden No. 2 cemetery extension.

3 That Scrutiny supports proposals to provide additional burial capacity within
Buckley Cemetery and approves the future submission of a capital funding
application.

4 That Scrutiny approves the further exploration of alternative burial and

cremation options as a means to support future cemetery capacity, subject to
available funding.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING CURRENT CAPACITY LEVELS WITHIN FLINTSHIRE
CEMETERIES

1.01

Bereavement Services currently manage 15 cemeteries and 8 closed
churchyards located throughout Flintshire. In addition, the service also has 2
gardens of remembrance located at Hawarden and Kelsterton, a dedicated
child and baby memorial at Kelsterton cemetery and a woodland / natural burial
area also located at Kelsterton Cemetery.

Also located within the 15 cemeteries are approximately 300 memorial benches
and 12 buildings of various sizes and usage, including the chapel located in
Hawarden (No 1) Cemetery. Within the cemeteries, the council undertakes
approximately 400 interments annually, both full body and cremated remains.

1.02

The management of cemeteries is, in the main, covered by the Local
Authorities Cemetery Order 1977 (LACO). Whilst there is no statutory duty
placed upon the authority to provide burial space for any specific community or
religious group, should the council exercise its powers to provide burial space,
a duty is then placed upon local authorities to maintain it in a good condition.

For those residents of Flintshire who are unable to fund their own funeral, the
authority does have a statutory duty under the Public Health (Control of
Disease) Act 1974 to undertake the necessary funeral arrangements on behalf
of the deceased and/or their family.

1.03

The current national trend indicates that 75% of all bereavements result in
cremation compared to that of 25% for burial. However, in Flintshire, this trend
is reversed, with 70% of all bereavements resulting in burials compared to only
30% opting for cremation. It is not known why the preference of Flintshire
residents is different to that of the rest of the UK; however, this places a far
greater demand for burial land within Flintshire than that required by other local
authorities.

1.04

Over recent years, there has been an increasing risk and challenge around the
capacity within the existing cemeteries and the availability of future burial
space, particularly at Hawarden (No. 2) cemetery and Buckley cemetery.
Without action being taken to address these shortages, local residents may no
longer be able to be buried in their local cemetery with other family members
and loved ones.

[udalen 154




1.05 | The table below shows the current position with regard to the number of
remaining full burial plots available at each of the county’s cemeteries. An
estimated equivalent number of years remaining has also been included for
reference, which is based on the current rate of usage.

Cemetery Remaining Current Annual Estimated No. of
Available Plots Average Demand Years Remaining
(based on average
Year demand)
Buckley 20 5 4
Hawarden No.2 200 46 4
Bagillt 110 7 16
Flint - London Road 653 31 21
Holywell 304 12 25
Hope - Bryn y Grog 310 12 26
Rhewl 214 3 71
Kelsterton 1864 12 155
Treuddyn 385 2 193
Greenfield No. 2 1026 4 257
TOTAL 5107 134 38
Please Note: Greenfield No.1, Hawarden No.1, Hope Old, Northop Road, Flint and Bryn Road,
Connah’s Quay are now all closed for new burials.

1.06 | As can be seen from the above table, the remaining burial capacity at both
Hawarden No. 2 and Buckley cemeteries is now at a critical level with only four
years of capacity at each cemetery.

Hawarden No. 2 is Flintshire’s main cemetery with approximately 33% of all
annual interments being undertaken at the cemetery.

Given the above, two separate projects aimed at providing additional capacity
at each of the above locations are currently progressing and an update has
been provided in this report for information.

In 2018 / 2019, Cabinet committed to retain cemetery provision in existing
locations (or as close to as possible) rather than moving to a “centralised”
cemetery to ensure that families could continue to be buried in the in the same
location as previous family members and to minimise any further distress to
bereaved families at this extremely sensitive and difficult time.

1.07 Hawarden No.2 Cemetery

Initial stages of the proposed extension to Hawarden No.2 Cemetery are
progressing. However, unfortunately all land owned by FCC within the
proximity of Hawarden No. 2 cemetery has been ruled out on the grounds of
environmental / conservation concerns. A section of land located to the rear of
the former Registrar’s Office had initially been identified, however, all efforts to
progress this have proven unsuccessful.

As a result, we are currently exploring the alternative option of acquiring a
section of land in private ownership. Whilst negotiations with the landowner
commenced a number of years ago, it has since been established that formal
negotiations (including a formal offer of purchase) have yet to be pursued, and
hence, it is not possible to establish, at this stage in the process, the likelihood
of an agreeable solution being found or the timescales.

Tudalen 155




To progress discussions with the landowner, specialist consultants have been
appointed and are in the process of completing outline design proposals, which
will accurately detail the land take required. In addition, a series of ‘at distance’
ecological surveys have also been instigated, which will provide the council with
the information required for a potential change of use and legal advice has
been provided on the appropriate procurement process.

A meeting with the private landowners will be planned in the next couple of
months, once designs and surveys have been completed.

We currently have a capital budget allocation remaining of £250k for this
project. However, this may need to be revisited due to the recent increases in
industry market costs and required procurement approach. It has not been
possible to quantify any potential increase in costs at this moment in time;
however, this is currently being investigated and established as part of the
consultant’s brief.

1.08

Buckley Cemetery — utilisation of currently unsuitable land:

Capacity at Buckley cemetery is also at a critical stage with only four years of
capacity remaining given current usage rates. Unfortunately, there is no option
for extension at the current cemetery on Elfed Drive, Buckley due to the
surrounding residential developments.

However, within the existing cemetery there is an area of low-lying land that has
yet to be utilised for burials, but ground investigations have found that the
shallow water table in this area means that the area is very wet and heavily
waterlogged in the winter months, which makes it unsuitable and dangerous for
grave excavation.

Further investigations have commenced for the installation of a system of below
ground, sealed pre-cast concrete burial chambers or a system of interlocking
composite chambers into this area. With this solution, the current low levels
would be raised, and a system of paths constructed around the “chambers”.
The area in question would have the chambers installed “en-masse,” which,
depending on the final design, could have the potential to accommodate up to
100 grave spaces, giving a minimum of 15 years’ additional capacity.

By installing the chambers during the summer months, the previous risk of
grave collapse (due to saturation) is greatly reduced, and the system of paths
would allow each grave to be dug by machine located on the paths.

An initial outline cost of approx. £180k has since been obtained, which would
include ground level raising, retaining wall construction, installation of the
chamber system, installation of footpaths and localised drainage connecting to
an existing soakaway. This proposal would be a considerably cheaper option
than the cost of establishing a new cemetery in the Buckley area (if suitable
land could be identified).

1.09

Local Churchyards

All local churches have minimal capacity left within their churchyards, which is
leading to a greater demand and increased burial rates within FCC’s
cemeteries. This is most evident in Buckley where Bistre Church now has only
two grave spaces remaining. We have therefore seen an increased demand for
reserved graves at Buckley as a direct consequence.

Tudalen 156




This has led to a temporary hold on the pre-purchasing of grave spaces being
put in place to ensure that we have sufficient burial space available until an
extension is completed / approved at Buckley. Demand for burial space is
generally increasing across the county with an increase of approximately 15%
above the historic average being recorded over the last 3 years.

1.10

Whilst the existing approach very much focuses on traditional burial methods,
we also have to be mindful of alternative solutions, which could assist with
easing current pressures and constraints associated with the requirement for
burial land. It is also worth exploring options that offer improved environmental
benefits.

1.1

A motion was proposed to the Climate Change Committee on 25t January
2023 for the Council to consider alternatives to traditional burials and
cremation, such as columbaria as an option for the deceased. A
recommendation was made by the Climate Change Committee to Cabinet and
the Environment & Economy Overview & Scrutiny Committee that the council
should offer columbaria as an option for residents as part of its suite of
bereavement and burial services. Additionally, the Committee recommended
that the council explores the viability of offering other environmentally friendly
burial options, such as resomation or natural/woodland burials, in the longer
term.

An overview of the various alternatives have therefore been referenced within
this report for information.

1.12

Columbaria

Consideration could be given to the introduction of ‘Columbaria’ in Flintshire.
Columbaria involves the above ground storage of cremated remains and would
be best suited in areas where below ground interment may not be possible. Not
only would this enable the use of previously unsuitable ground, it would also
enable the prioritisation of suitable ground for traditional interments (full body).
Ideally this could be considered as part of the increased capacity proposals for
both Hawarden Cemetery (Flintshire’s main Cemetery) and Buckley cemetery.
This would allow for potential demand to be understood before any further
developments and financial commitment are made.

1.13

Resomation

Resomation could also be considered as an alternative to traditional cremation
in Flintshire. Resomation is a process that utilises water rather than fire / gas
and is often seen as a more environmentally friendly option to cremation due to
the greatly reduced emission levels. The process is commonplace in the USA
and, whilst a small number of local authorities in the UK have shown an interest
in the process, the necessary permits and permission to run such an operation /
facility in the UK are still a few years away.

Notwithstanding the above, the council could place itself in the ideal position to
consider the option in coming years, and continues to participate in the APSE
Cemetery and Crematorium Network Group to remain current with industry
developments. Whilst significant capital investment in the process would be
required, it does have the potential to generate a revenue income stream in the
longer term.

Tudalen 157




1.14

Natural Burial

The process of a natural burial is more environmentally friendly than a
traditional burial and only permits the use of ecologically friendly coffins and cut
flowers with no plastic wrappings or packaging. In addition, memorials are not
permitted on a natural burial grave; however, consideration is currently being
given to sustainably-sourced wooden memorials.

Flintshire currently has a natural burial area located within Kelsterton Cemetery.
A small number of full body and cremated remains interments have already
taken place within the area.

Consideration could also be given to including a second natural burial area in
the proposed Hawarden No. 2 extension (subject to progression of the land
ownership discussions) along with increased promotion of the existing area.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

We currently have a capital budget allocation remaining of £250k for this
project. However, this may need to be revisited due to the recent increases in
industry market costs and required procurement approach. It has not been
possible to quantify any potential increase in costs at this moment in time;
however, this is currently being investigated and established as part of the
consultant’s brief.

2.02

Capital funding in the region of £130k is required for the implementation of the
required works in Buckley cemetery to increase the capacity as outlined in this
report, subject to receiving support for the proposal.

2.03

Should any of the alternative options be favoured, a varying degree of
investment would be required to support the implementation of additional
facilities.

3.00

IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

3.01

Given the current burial rates across the county, burial space is more than likely
to be exhausted within the next 4 years at two of our main cemeteries. Should
an agreed solution not be forthcoming, the impact would be that the Council will
no longer be able to offer burial plots to Flintshire residents and future
generations at these cemeteries, and residents would lose the option of
affordable burial space. This could lead to a negative public perception should
Flintshire run out of burial space and potential equalities impact, with residents
unable to access the service or having to use privately owned cemeteries or
cemeteries outside the area.

3.02

Extending the burial capacity at the council’s cemeteries enables us to address
the shortage of remaining burial space and is an opportunity to improve the
quality of the bereavement services offered. It also aligns with the priorities in
the Council Plan by delivering this service efficiently and maximising value for
money for the tax payer. It would encourage more users to the cemetery and
contribute to the council’s priority of ensuring access to green spaces.

Tudalen 158




3.03 | To ensure that the local authority is compliant with Article 4(1) of LACO 1977,
which requires that a local authority keeps any cemetery that they are
responsible for in good order, including buildings and infrastructure. Therefore
most day-to-day operations would need to continue in order to complete
horticultural and housekeeping duties, not to mention the health and safety
functions for a public open space and so costs would not significantly reduce,
despite a cemetery being closed in the future.

4.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT

4.01 Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Streetscene and
Regional Transport Strategy

4.02 Consultation to be undertaken with the local elected members within the wards
of Hawarden No. 2 cemetery and Buckley cemetery following the Environment
& Economy Overview & Scrutiny Committee to provide them with an update on
the issues and progress to date, along with the options for increasing capacity.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 None

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 None

7.00 | CONTACT OFFICER DETAILS

7.01 Contact Officer: Anthony Stanford, Transportation Manager
Telephone: 01352
E-mail: anthony.stanford@flintshire.gov.uk

8.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

8.01 (1) Columbarium: a columbarium is an above ground piece of funerary

architecture, which is made up of individual chambers that house cremated
remains

(2) Resomation: a resomation is sometimes referred to as ‘water cremation’ or
alkaline hydrolysis. It involves the use of water and alkali at high
temperatures and pressure to chemically reduce the body to liquid and white
ash. The resulting ash is returned to relatives in the same way as the
process for flame cremation. The excess fluid created during the process
can then be used as fertiliser because of the high nutrient content.

(3) Natural Burial: a natural burial is a more environmentally friendly option to
that of a traditional burial which only permits the use of ecologically friendly
coffins, no memorials and the use of cut flowers with no plastic wrappings or
packaging.

Tudalen 159



mailto:anthony.stanford@flintshire.gov.uk

(4) Flintshire Funeral Service: a proposal for the council to work in partnership
with a designated local funeral director to offer local residents an affordable
low cost funeral package.

(5) Flintshire Memorial Repair Service: a proposal to upskill the council’s
sextons to allow them to undertake any required memorial repairs for which
a fee could be charged when undertaken for external requests. This would
greatly benefit the ongoing memorial safety programme and allow unsafe
memorials to be addressed in-house. Currently these repairs are all
undertaken by external contractors.

(6) Grave Maintenance Service: a proposal for the council to undertake a
service that attends to a grave upon request of a family member. Three
different levels of service could be offered (Gold, Silver and Bronze) for
which varying fees would apply. The scope of the proposed service would
include regular headstone cleaning, keeping the grave area tidy, supply and
placement of flowers on the grave on anniversaries / annual events
(Christmas, Easter, Mother’s Day, Father’s Day etc.) with regular photos
being sent to the family member upon completion of works. This service
would be offered in addition to our ongoing grounds maintenance service
and would be targeted mainly towards those people who were no longer
able to visit family graves either due to location or reasons of incapacity.

(7) Genealogy Service: as part of the council’s new cemetery management
system, we will have the option to show all our burial records online via a
link hosted on the council’'s website. This would allow members of the public
to undertake their own genealogy searches with a small fee being applied
for this service.

Tudalen 160




	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	Call-in Minutes - 01.02.23
	Final draft  minutes Environment  Economy OS C 7 Feb 2023

	4 Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol ac Olrhain Camau Gweithredu
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme and Action Tracking (E&E OSC)
	Enc. 2 for Forward Work Programme and Action Tracking (E&E OSC)

	6 Safonau’r Gwasanaethau Stryd
	Appendix 1 - Streetscene Standards

	7 Polisi Torri Glaswellt
	Appendix 1 - Grass Cutting Policy
	Appendix 2 - Grass Cutting Policy
	Appendix 3 - Grass Cutting Policy
	1 -2 Intro -The importance of local biodiversity
	4 Grassland habitat
	5 Nature isn't Neat and other concerns
	6 Flintshire Action - An overview
	7 Pesticides in FCC
	8 Grass Cutting Policy Options - Breakout session Jan 2023
	9 Next steps and Close


	8 Strategaeth Toiledau Lleol
	9 Gwasanaethau Profedigaeth

